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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), | herein present
the annual report of NNK Group Limited (the “Company") together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group™) for the year ended 3| December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period").

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in providing mobile top-up services to mobile users
through electronic banking systems of banks in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")
and other channels including third-party online platforms, its own websites and WeChat

public account.

In 2021, the COVID-19 epidemic has continued to be under control and the gradual
recovery of China's economy brought a great business opportunity for the Company
to facilitate the business expansion from mobile top-up service. The Group has
strived to increase its gross transaction value for the full year of 2021 in order to
compensate the impact on the reduction of the average discount rate offered by the
PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors. The gross transaction value
via electronic banking system increased by approximately 47.1% to approximately
RMB14,002.4 million for the year ended 3| December 2021 from approximately
RMB9,518.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Overall gross transaction
value with mobile users increased by approximately 40.7% to approximately RMB14,228. |
million for the year ended 3| December 2021 from approximately RMBI0,112.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The discount rates offered by the PRC
telecommunication operators and their distributors have continued to decline in 2021.
It resulted in the decrease in average discount rate that the Company received from the
PRC telecommunication operators, their distributors and other channels to 0.6% for 2021

from 0.8% for 2020.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®|E

The Group monitored the extent of direct cost with the increasing volume of top-up
service provided during the Reporting Period. The commission fees charged by the PRC
banks and other channels for handling mobile top-up service requests via their electronic
systems decreased to approximately RMBI 1.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 from approximately RMB 154 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, with
an increase in gross transaction value by approximately 41.3%. Moreover, the Group from
time to time sourced stable and price competitive top-up resources from its suppliers
during the Reporting Period. Such measures could enable the Group to maintain its

competitiveness within the mobile top-up industry.

As a result of the overall impact of increase in gross transaction value of the mobile users
and decrease in the average discount rate received from the PRC telecommunication
operators, their distributors and other channels, the profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB26.5 million,
as compared with profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 3|

December 2020 of approximately RMB 30.2 million.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2022, we will seek opportunities for strategic partnership with major
PRC banks that can create synergies with us, and opportunities for making selective
investments or acquisitions to enhance our competence. We will continue to improve our
services provided to the existing merchants and secure our position as the leading supplier
of mobile top-up service through electronic banking system of the PRC banks. We will

also strive to create sustainable long-term value for shareholders and employees.

IMPACT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC
In 2021, despite the impact of the disturbance of COVID-19 pandemic and related
containment measures in certain cities of China, we still maintained a stable business

performance due to our market position and excellent technology platform.
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Although year 2022 continues to be challenging, economic recovery from the COVID-19
pandemic is progressing at a slow pace. The current new waves of Omicron variant
affecting various countries may have again destabilized the economy of China which is
believed to be on the right track of recovery. However, the Board is generally optimistic
about the medium and long-term prospect of the mobile top-up industry and the Group's

business operations.

The Group adopts a conservative policy in cash and financial management. To manage the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and to minimize the finance risk, the Group's treasury
activities are centralized. The Group's liquidity and financing arrangements are reviewed
regularly by the Directors and the top executives. We will continue to strengthen refined
management, as well as cost savings and expense control brought about by economies of
scale, so as to mitigate any potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business

development.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff and management team for their dedication and contribution in the
past year, as well as to our shareholders and business partners for their confidence and

support to the Group.

Huang Junmou

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE FI—J-FIHH& *ﬁ'

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB90.6
million, representing an increase of approximately 10.9% as compared with approximately
RMB81.7 million for the year ended 3| December 2020. The increase in revenue was

primarily due to the increase in mobile top-up requests via electronic banking systems.

Gross Transaction Value with Mobile Users

The gross transaction value with mobile users increased by approximately 41.3% to
approximately RMB14,288.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately RMB10,112.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The gross
transaction value via electronic banking systems increased by approximately 47.1%
to approximately RMB14,002.4 million for the year ended 3| December 2021 from
approximately RMB9,518.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The gross
transaction value through offline channels and other channels including third-party
online platforms, the Group's own websites and WeChat public account decreased
by approximately 51.9% to approximately RMB285.7 million for the year ended 3|
December 2021 from approximately RMB593.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The increase in the gross transaction values via electronic banking systems was
mainly caused by the deepening cooperation with major PRC banks. The decrease in the
gross transaction values through offline channels and other channels was resulted from
the suspension of operation of physical stores due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and the

streamline of the downstream channels during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Transaction Value with PRC Telecommunication Operators, their Distributors
and Other Channels

The average discount rate that the Company received from the PRC telecommunication
operators, their distributors and other channels decreased from approximately 0.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 0.6% for the year ended 31
December 2021. The gross transaction value with the PRC telecommunication operators,
their distributors and other channels increased by approximately 41.7% for the year ended
31 December 2021 as compared to the year ended 31 December 2020, which was in

line with the increase in the gross transaction value with mobile users.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased by approximately 18.9% to approximately RMBI14.8 million
for the year ended 3| December 2021 from approximately RMBI18.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to the decrease in commission fees charged by
the PRC banks and other channels for handling mobile top-up service requests via their
electronic banking systems, as a result of the reduction of the rates for commission fees
charged by certain PRC banks and decrease in gross transaction value from certain third-

party channel partners charging higher commission rates.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the increase in the gross transaction value and decrease in cost of revenue,
gross profit increased by approximately 19.9% to approximately RMB75.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately RMB63.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Group's overall gross margin increased to approximately 83.4% for the year ended
31 December 2021 from approximately 77.1% for the year ended 3| December 2020,

mainly due to the decrease in cost of revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE FI—J-FIHH& *ﬁ'

Other Income and Expenses

Other income and expenses increased by approximately 15.1% to approximately RMB8.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately RMB7.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase was primarily due to the effect of the
10% input tax deduction policy, resulting in an increase of approximately 44.5% from
approximately RMB4.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMBY.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately 56.9% to approximately
RMB9.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately RMB6.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to the increase in sales

promotion expenses.

Administration Expenses

Administration expenses increased by approximately 21.5% to approximately RMB31.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately RMB25.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to the increase in professional and

consultants' fees for business development and staff cost.

Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses increased by approximately 2 1.4% to approximately
RMB8.6 million for the year ended 3| December 2021 from approximately RMB7.1

million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to the increase in staff cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 100.7% to approximately RMB2.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately RMBI.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, primarily due to the increase in average bank borrowings and the

increase in average borrowing rate.

Income Tax Expense

The Group's income tax expense significantly increased from approximately RMB0.0|
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB5.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to the recoverable tax losses of
the subsidiaries of the Group for previous years were used up in the current year, the
deferred income tax asset recognized in the previous period was written back and income
tax was withheld and paid for the dividends distributed by domestic subsidiaries to

overseas subsidiaries.

Profit for the Year attributable to Owners of the Company

As a result of cumulative effects of foregoing, profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB26.5 million,
as compared with profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 3|

December 2020 of approximately RMB30.2 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE FI—J-FIHH& *ﬁ'

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
The Group's working capital was funded by cash from operating activities, bank loans and
proceeds from the global offering of the Company. Certain financial data are summarized

as follows:

RBEERMBEFRAREREE

AEENEEEHEEERDAERE R
TERRARAREREEMBFARLN -

ETUBBERIMT

As at 31 December

R+=H=+-—H
2021 2020
—EZ-§ CZE-TF
RMB000 RMB000

AREFT ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents RekHReEED 32,520 103,579
Net current assets MEEEFE 241,403 213,983
Net cash used in operating activities RETHMAR S FE (67,044) (40,658)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities MEEE (A MEHREFHE (3.851) 27,636

As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
RMB32.5 million, as compared with approximately RMB103.6 million as at 31 December
2020. The Group reported net current assets of approximately RMB241.4 million as at 31
December 2021, as compared with approximately RMB214.0 million as at 31 December
2020. The Group's current ratio was approximately 2.8 as at 31 December 2021, as
compared with approximately 2.6 as at 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, net cash used in operating activities was
approximately RMB67.0 million, as compared with net cash used in operating activities
of approximately RMB40.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. For the year
ended 3| December 2021, net cash used in financing activities was approximately RMB3.9
million, as compared with net cash from financing activities of approximately RMB27.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in net cash from operating

activities was due to an increase of advance payments from upstream suppliers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2021, the borrowings of the Group was approximately RMB50.0
million, as compared with approximately RMB50.0 million as at 31 December 2020. As
at 31 December 2021, the total bank borrowings, being interest-bearing bank borrowings
which were dominated in Renminbi, carried fixed interest rate at 5.5% (31 December

2020: fixed interest rate at 5.2%) per annum and were repayable within one year.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivables mainly represent receivables from the PRC banks in relation to our
mobile top-up service. Trade receivables decreased from approximately RMB189.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMBI68.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to the decrease in transactions with longer credit
period (about 30 to 45 days from invoice date) with China Merchants Bank, our major

client.

Trade receivables turnover days (calculated by the average of the beginning and ending
balances of trade receivables of the year, divided by the gross transactions value with
mobile users for the year and multiplied by 366 days) for the year ended 31 December
2021 was 4.58 days (for the year ended 31 December 2020: 5.34 days). The Company
realised that the increase in transactions with longer credit period would require a much
closer monitoring of the settlement in order to ensure business tumover. The Company
will continue to monitor the credit risk by ongoing review the settlement of customers,
and evaluate the credit limits annually accordingly to the track record and financial position

of the counterparties.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (calculated by dividing bank borrowings by
total equity as at the end of the year) of the Group decreased to approximately 21.2%
from approximately 23.9% as at 3| December 2020 due to the increase in total equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE n-J-nHH& *ﬁ'

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 3| December 2021, the Group had capital expenditure of
approximately RMB1.4 million, as compared with approximately RMBO0.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The above expenditure was mainly related to the

purchase of computers and office equipment.

Significant Investment

As at 3| December 2021, the Group did not have any significant investment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material capital commitments.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's reporting currency is in Renminbi to which the Group’s material transactions
are denominated. The net proceed from global offering are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, which exposed the Group to market risk arising from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rate. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure closely

and consider the usage of hedging instruments when the need arises.

Charges on Assets

As at 3| December 202 | and 2020, the Group did not have any charges over assets.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities, guarantees or any litigation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS
There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December
2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
During the Reporting Period, there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,

associated companies and joint ventures by the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 109 (31 December 2020: 77) full-time
employees. Total staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration) was approximately
RMB25.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, as compared with approximately
RMB18.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group believes that
employees are one of its most important assets and the Group strives to offer a
competitive remuneration to its employees. The Group has been recruiting and
promoting individuals based on merit and their development potentials. Remuneration
package offered to all employees including Directors is determined with reference to their
performance, qualifications, experience and the prevailing salary levels in the market. The
Group has been providing training opportunities for its employees in order to enhance

their qualifications and equip them with necessary skills.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBEBREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Huang Junmou (E&), aged 55, is our chairman and has been an executive
Director of the Company since 18 June 2014. He is a founder of the Group and has
served as a director and chairman of the board of Shenzhen Niannianka Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (RYITTFFRBHERHL AR 2 F]) (“Shenzhen NNK”) since
its incorporation. He is responsible for overseeing the Group's overall strategic planning
and management. Mr. Huang has over |6 years of experience in information technology
related industries, including over 14 years of experience in the mobile top-up service
industry. Prior to founding Shenzhen NNK, he was the general manager of Shenzhen
Motivity Telecom Co, Ltd. (RYITTERE) S BB R 2 F)), a company primarily engaging
in the provision of information technology outsourcing services from June 2004 to May
2006, where he was responsible for business development. Mr. Huang was a shareholder
and a director of Shenzhen Honglingyu Industrial Limited Company from May 200
to May 2004, where he was responsible for strategic planning and management of the
company. Prior to that, Mr. Huang was a shareholder and worked as a supervisor for
Shenzhen Difulan Industrial Limited Company from May 1998 to May 2001, where he was
responsible for administrative and financial management. Mr. Huang was an employee of
the Shenzhen Post Office (AYIITTEE /B) from September 1988 to August 1992, and
an employee of Shenzhen Telecommunications Development Company (FIITTE(E
EEE N A)) from November 1992 to November 1995, Prior to that, Mr. Huang worked
for Shenzhen Fengsheng International Textile and Fashion Company (3|2 5% BB 2
AR AR A A]) from October 1986 to October 1988. Mr. Huang is a director of Fun
Charge Technology Limited (“Fun Charge Technology'), a substantial shareholder of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fan Weiguo (S2fiEH), aged 58, was first appointed to our Board as a non-executive
Director on 28 October 2021 and his term of appointment ended on 10 February 2022.
He was re-appointed as a non-executive Director on |7 March 2022. He is currently
the president of Shenzhen City Commodity Exchange Market Federation* (Y|
MR ZTIZHAE). He served as the assistant to president, senior reporter and vice
general manager of Economic Herald (& /E&#R) from 1992 to 2008. Mr. Fan was the
special assistant to the chairman of the board of China Resource And Transportation
Group Limited (FEIE R AEE AR F]), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 0269),
from 2009 to 2010. Between May 2011 and March 2013, he also held two positions at
North Mining Shares Company Limited (37582 BBRA ), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0433), including the positions of executive
director between May 2011 and May 2012, and non-executive director between May
2012 and March 2013. Mr. Fan was the executive director of Global Strategic Group
Limited GRIREXBESEE AR A F]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8007), from 2014 to 2016. He was also the vice chairman of the
board of Universal Television GRIXE1R &) from 2016 to 2019.

Mr. Fan graduated from International East-West University of United States of America
with a master degree of business and administration. He is also a senior economists
and senior planner qualified by the Ministry of Labor and Social Security of the People’s
Republic of China.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBEBREFE

Mr. Yu Zida (% F), aged 57, has been a non-executive Director of the Company since
18 June 2014. He is responsible for overseeing the strategic development of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yu has served as the president of Shenzhen Sinomaster
Investment Group Co,, Ltd. (RIITT1& /1B E KB B R 2 F]) since September 2013,
He has served as director of T&S Communications Co., Ltd. (RYIKR K BIERHER
72 7A]) since March 2014, a company Listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code:
300570). Since 20 March 2015, he has been served as a director of Shenzhen Aisidi Co.,
Ltd. CRINTE @A 1D AR A A]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 002416). From April 2016 to March 2019, he has been served as a director
of Shanghai Kuwu Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (/8BS EEEEE RN ER
72 7]), a company listed on New OTC Market.

Mr. Yu was a deputy director of the end user committee of the China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (FBIS 18T E IR R A & B 2 HiL
FAFPZEE) from November 2007 to August 2013, He was recognized as a National
Young and Middle-aged Expert with Outstanding Contributions (FFEI# & F A %
BREIER) by the State Council of the PRC in 1999 for his contribution to engineering
services. Mr. Yu was awarded certificates for High-Level Professional in Shenzhen in
November 2013 and April 2019 for each of terms of five years, where he was recognized
as a national-level talent by the Human Resources and Social Security Administration
of Shenzhen Municipality (FYITT A N ERFIH 2IRIED). He served as an assistant
vice president and Head of the Headquarter Research and Development Promotion
Department (T H#EEANER) of the Haier Group (BF5[E) started from February
2002. From October 2003, he served as a vice president and the head of the information
technology products department, from April 2005 he served as a vice president and head
of the company's strategy department, from December 2009, he served as senior vice
president and chief technology officer, and from April 2010 to September 2013 he served
as executive vice president and Chief Technology Officer of the Haier Group. He also
served as a director of Qingdao Haier Co. Ltd. (F&/8MIRHER A F), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600690), from June 2010 to April
2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yu received a bachelor's degree in power engineering from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology (EEFRHXAZ) (formerly known as Huazhong College of
Engineering (3H TEFx)) in July 1985. He further obtained a master's degree in power
engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology ((EFBHE A E2)
(formerly known as Huazhong Polytechnic University (EFR 32 T KX22)) in July 1988,

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Zhangxi (PRE ), aged 70, was appointed to our Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 November 2014. He has over 25 years of experience in
the information systems industry. He has held multiple research and teaching positions,
including Deputy Director of FinTech Research Institute of Harbin Institute of Technology,
Shenzhen since February 2019, tenured professorship and the co-director of the Center
for Advanced Analytics and Business Intelligence of Texas Tech University from 2007
to May 2018, and Emeritus Professor of Texas Tech University since February 2019,
the dean of Yunshang Silk Road Big Data Industry Research Institute, Korla Economic &
Technological Development Zone (BRI ERMAZEE LA BABBES
T7EFT) from August 2016 to January 2018 representing Xihua University (P K E2)
at Sichuan, the director of the Sichuan Province Finance Intelligence and Engineering Key
laboratory (M) E & MEZHEMIIEEHERE) from May 2008 to December
2015, the director of Fujian Engineering School Next Generation Internet Research Center
(REIRZR T -—REBEZMERMAERMER L) from 2004 to 2010, adjunct
professor of the Fujian Engineering School since June 2004, a professor of Tongji University
([RIERE) since October 1995. He headed the provincial pilot of international payment
balance information management system, a program of the 7th Five-Year Programs for
Science and Technology Development of China of the National Development and Reform
Committee during 1988 to 1992. He was a deputy supervisor at the Fujian Province
Economic Information Centre (f832& &&= S H 4 from November 1987 to July
1992 and a senior engineer at the Fujian Provincial Planning Committee Computer Centre
(REEFTEIZEEEFAEHR D) from November 1983 to October 1987.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBEBREFE

Mr. Lin received a master of engineering degree from Tsinghua University (/5% K£2) in
June 1982, He further received a master of science degree in economics in December
1996 and a doctor of philosophy degree in December 1999 from the University of Texas
at Austin. He is a member of several key industry organizations, including the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineer, the Institute for Operations Research and the

Management Sciences and Association for Information Systems.

Mr. Qian Haomin (82 %), aged 45, was appointed to our Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 November 2014. He has extensive experience in brand
strategy and operations and participated in the establishment of CSJ-SBI Financial Media
Co, Ltd, a joint venture between China Securities Journal and SBI Group in January 201 I.
He currently serves as a director, general manager of CSJ-SBI Financial Media Co., Ltd. He
joined China Securities Journal (FF BIZE % %R) in June 2001 and had held various positions
including reporter, director of the career development department and assistant to the
chief editor and assistant to the journal president. Prior to joining China Securities Journal,
he worked as an assistant researcher at the International Information Research Agency of
the National Information Centre (B 1z & A L BIFRE SHHFEPT) from August 1998
to June 2001. He was a member of the drafting committee of the “Interpretation of
Securities Law" of The National People’s Congress Securities Law Amendment Drafting
Group (RBIARBEFEEHRENE(EFERE)RTH) and the drafting
committee of the 2005 and 2006 editions of “China Trust Company Operation Report”
by China Renmin University Trust Fund Research Institute (FBIARKSBETEHE S
FRFERT2005 22006 FE(FEIEFERARIRLERE)HRZESR). In addition, Mr. Qian is
the chairman of China Securities Jinniu (Beijing) Investment Consutting Co.,, Ltd. (& &
H L R)REBABR AT, a company he joined in March 2012. Mr. Qian is qualified
as a fund practitioner of the Asset Management Association of China (FFBIFE F1% & &
£ EWE), and he was recruited in July 2017 as the researcher at the Institute of Finance
and Accounting in Wuhan University (E\)% A S 81 7% S & 5T R AT ).

Mr. Qian received a bachelor's degree in economics from Peking University (1t A ) in
July 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Zhao Jinlin (B #F), aged 53, was appointed to our Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 November 2014. She is a professor in the School of Economics
of Shenzhen University, which she joined in June 2006. Ms. Zhao is a committee member
of China International Taxation Research Institute. She was an independent non-executive
director of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (538 B &5/ (T B A
R2 7)), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0312)
between June 2010 and April 2019, an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
Infinova Technology Co., Ltd. (RINERIAR RN AR A
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002528) between January 2014 and February

&]), a company listed on

2019, and an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Esun Display Co., Ltd (i
YImBmERERA
code: 002751) between March 2016 and March 2019.

&l), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock

Ms. Zhao has been appointed as an independent director of Shenzhen Inovance
Technology Co,, Ltd. CRYIITTEE )| B MR 1A AR A
Stock Exchange (stock code: 300124), with effect from 24 May 2021, and an independent
director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. DA BXRHBRA
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000014), with effect from 22 April 2021.

A]), a company listed on Shenzhen

), a company listed on

Ms. Zhao received a bachelor's degree in welding from the Xi'an Jiaotong University (78 %
ZIBAE) in July 1989, a master's degree in accounting from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics (P8R8 EA4E K E2) in June 1995 and a doctor of philosophy degree
in accounting from Jinan University (278 A Z2) in January 2005,

Save as disclosed above,

(1) the Directors did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies of
which the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas
in the last three years prior to the date of this report and does not hold any other

positions with the Company or other members of the Group; and

(2)  the Directors do not have other relationship with any other Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the

Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBEBREFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Lu (Z8), aged 60, was appointed by the Company as the chief executive
officer of Shenzhen NNK since 29 October 2021. He has over 40 years of management
experience in the finance industry, and is proficient in the banking and electronic payment
sectors. Mr. Li was the vice president of YINSHENG Technology Service Group Limited
(HRERERBEBERAR]) from 2009 to 2021, and served as the president of
YINSHENG E-PAY Service Company Limited (885 3% 5 IR# A% 17 B PR A ) from 2010
to 2017. Mr. Li was the director of risk management of Tenpay Technology Company
Limited (8 @EHEBR A F)) from 2006 to 2007. Mr. Li is also experienced in the
banking industry by serving as the assistant general manager of Shenzhen city branch of
ICBC (FFEI T8R7T) from 1987 to 2006 and the senior chief of Qingdao city branch of
ICBC (P EITEERIT) from 1979 to 1987. He graduated from the University of Tian Jin

(REKRE) in 1978, with a master degree of management science and engineering,

Mr. Hung Hing Hung (BtEE4L), aged 40, is the Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Hung joined the Company in November 2021. He has
over |5 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting and finance. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Hung held senior positions in different organisations, including in an
interational accounting firm and various public and private companies in Hong Kong. Mr.
Hung is responsible for the financial management and company secretarial matters of the

Group.
Mr. Hung graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and obtained a bachelor's

degree in Business Administration (Professional Accountancy) in 2006. He is a fellow

member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

[t is the belief of the Board that good corporate governance plays a vital part in
maintaining the success of the Company. The Company is committed to achieve and
maintain high standards of corporate governance practices to ensure greater corporate
performance accountability and transparency, and safeguard the interests of shareholders

of the Company (the “Shareholders").

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied with all the applicable
Code Provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (refers to the provisions contained in the
Appendix 14 to the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) in force during the year ended 31 December 2021) (the “CG Code")
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Board will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practice of the Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code

and align with the latest developments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding Director's securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
to all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2021.

THE BOARD

Corporate strategy

The strategy of the Group is to deliver sustainable returns with solid financial fundamentals,
so as to enhance total long-term return for Shareholders. Please refer to the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report for discussions and analyses of the performance of the Group, how the Group
generates and preserves value over the longer term and how the Group will execute its

strategy for delivering the business objectives of the Group.
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Board Composition
The Board currently comprises six Directors, including one executive Director, two non-

executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board for the year ended 3| December 2021 and up to the date

of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer) (resigned on 28 October 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangcheng (resigned on 3 December 2021)

Mr. XU Xinhua (resigned on 28 October 2021)

Mr. FAN Weiguo (appointed on 28 October 2021, term of appointment ended on
10 February 2022 and re-appointed on 17 March 2022)

Mr. YU Zida

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi

Mr. QIAN Haomin

Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the board members
and the senior management are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 16 to 22 of this annual report. Details
regarding the term of appointment of the non-executive Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment” on page 75 in

this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provisions A2.| of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of a listed company should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Yang Hua acted as an executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company (“CEQ") and resigned as an executive Director and the CEO
on 28 October 202! due to his desire to devote more time to his other business
commitments. The original responsibilities of Mr. Yang Hua had been delegated to Mr.
Li Lu, the new chief executive officer of Shenzhen NNK, who was appointed by the
Company on 29 October 2021. In accordance with Code Provision A.2.I of the CG
Code, the roles of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and CEO are separately performed by (i)
Mr. Huang Junmou and (ii) Mr. Yang Hua (until 28 October 2021) and Mr. Li Lu (since 29
October 2021), and the division of their responsibilities is clearly established and set out in
writing in order to ensure a clear distinction between the responsibilities of the Chairman

and CEO.

Mr. Huang Junmou is the Chairman of the Board and primarily responsible for providing
leadership to the Board and overseeing the Group's overall strategic planning and
management. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practices. With
the support of the company secretaries of the Company, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely manner. The Chairman encourages all Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors to actively participate in all board and committee meetings. Mr. Huang
is a founder of the Group and has over |6 years of experience in information technology
related industries, including over 14 years of experience in the mobile top-up service

industry.

Mr. Li Lu is the CEO of Shenzhen NNK, the main subsidiary of the Company. He
is responsible for the Group's day-to-day management, operations and business
development in the PRC. Mr. Li has over 40 years of management experience in the

finance industry, and is proficient in the banking and electronic payment sectors.
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Independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the Board at all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines as set out under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. The Board has
delegated to the CEO, and through him, to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the
Board has established board committees (the “Board Committees”) and has delegated
to these Board Committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference. Further details of these committees are set out in section headed "Board

Committees” in this annual report.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and

management of the Company are delegated to the management.
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Corporate Governance Report

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and

professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have access to all the information of the Company as well as the services
and advice of the company secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders

at all times.

The CG Code requires directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved to the issuer. Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the

Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in

respect of legal actions against its Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 7 January 2016 which set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional qualification,
skills, knowledge and industry and length of service. The Company aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the
Company's business growth. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits

of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be made

upon the merits and the contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “"Nomination Committee”) will review
the board diversity policy, as annually appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this
policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and

recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises of six Directors, covering
different genders and has a broad age distribution and a diverse mix of background,
knowledge and skills. The Nomination Committee considers that, appropriate balance has

been stricken among the Board members in terms of skills, experience and perspectives.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally made available
to Directors in advance. The Board meets at least four times per year at approximately
quarterly intervals in accordance with Code Provision A.l.1 of the CG Code. Notice
of not less than |4 days would be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend pursuant to Code Provision A.1.3 of the CG

Code and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other board and committee meetings, reasonable notice would be given. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors
at least three days before each board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. All
Directors can access to the senior management and the joint company secretaries of the
Company at all time and upon reasonable request seek independent professional advice

at the Company's expense.

Minutes of the meetings are kept properly with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and record. Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which meeting is held. The minutes of the

board meetings are available for inspection by Directors.

The articles of association of the Company (“Articles”) contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS
The attendance record of each Director at the Board, Board Committees meetings and
general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set

out in the table below:

EERZEEHEHERSH
BE-S-—Ft+-A=+—RLEEAR
AREEHEESE  FERASEARK
EAGHEFRHATE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

i/ eERY
Annual

Board  Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit General
Name of Director Meeting ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Esps EZeE3 RAZEE HMZRE ENZEE RREFAS
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. HUANG Junmou RBR#RE m Il M NATER Il
Mr. YANG Hua (resgned on 28 October 2021) W5tk (REE=—41A=1/1A§HE) 47 NATER  NATER  NATER I/
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. U Xiangcheng (fesigned on 3 December 2021)  FERAE (R=E=—F+-A=AFH) 47 NATEE  NATEE  NATER I/
Mr. XU Xinhua (resigned on 28 October 2021)  TATE% A& (R=E=—F1A=1/|HE#E) 47 NATERE  NATER  NATER I
Mr. Fan Weiguo (anpointed on 28 October 2021, BRBRAE (R=F=—%+A=1/|AEE W ONANER  NARER  NATER o

term of appointment ended on 10 February 2022 fF - AR - E-Z# - f Akt UK
and re-appointed on |7 March 2022) E__ECHTHEENESR)

Mr. YU Zida WERE o ONANER NANER NATER I/l
Independent non-executive Directors BUFYTES
Mr. QIAN Haomin BERRE 7 N NATER 212 I/1
Mr. LN Zhangxi WERLE M NATNER 0N 0N I/
Ms. ZHAO jinlin BEHLL i 1/ 0 0 I
Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not hold any other general BRIRRBEFAEI  AARHE_T=—F

meeting during the year ended 3| December 2021.

Code provision A2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) without the executive directors present. For the year ended 3|
December 2021, the Chairman met with the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors without other executive Directors present to understand their

concerns and to discuss pertinent issues.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as Directors of the Company and of the conduct,

business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visits to the Company's offices and meetings with senior

management of the Company.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of CG Code, Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics
will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company's expenses. According to the records of the
Company, in 2021, all Directors attended training sessions on duties and obligations
of directors of companies listed on the Stock Exchange which was conducted by the

Company's legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws.
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PDeaipa

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the key methods of attaining continuous HE-Z%—

professional development by each of the Directors are summarised as follows:

~F+ A= t—RILEE &
EFRERETLEENTENERANT

Attending Reading
courses/ regulatory
Name of Directors seminars materials
HERR,/ MEEE
BEEns mae REER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. HUANG Junmou BRRAE V \
Mr. Yang Hua (resjgned on 28 October 2021) BERE (R=F=—F1+A=1/\AFH) V y
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Li Xiangcheng (resigned on 3 December 2021) ~ ZEEE (R=ZF=Z—F+ = F=HEHF) V y
Mr. Xu Xinhua (resigned on 28 October 202/) TELE (RCE-—F T A1/ AFIT) V y
Mr. FAN Weiguo (appointed on 28 October 202/,  SBEBILE (RZE=—F+H =1/ E’féi £
term of appointment ended on 10 February 2022 HFHIR = FE=—F = A+ A5x4 » Ik
and re-appointed on |7 March 2022) ZFE=ZHTHAEEFET) V y
Mr. YU Zida Wik E V \
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. QIAN Haomin BESEE V \
Mr. LIN Zhangxi WERLE V V
Ms. ZHAO Jinlin HEMZL \ \
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A4.l of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive Directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A4.2 of
the CG Code states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
and is appointed for a specific term of three years unless terminated by not less than three

months' notice in writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract/signed an appointment letter with the Company and is

appointed for a specific term of three years.

All appointments of Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles. In accordance with the Articles, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that

meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
laid down in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of

Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are posted on the Stock

Exchange’s website and Company's website.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, risk management and intermal control system of the Group,
oversee the audit process and select external auditors and assess their independence and

qualifications.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Zhao Jinlin, Mr. Lin Zhangxi and Mr. Qian Haomin. Ms. Zhao Jinlin is the chairlady of the
Audit Committee and she is the Company's independent non-executive Director with the

appropriate professional qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2021 to
review the annual financial results and report in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 and interim financial results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2021 as
well as significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, and the effectiveness of the Company's internal

audit function.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to
the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are, among other things, to establish, review and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; and to establish transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her

associates will participate in deciding his’/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
being Ms. Zhao Jinlin and Mr. Lin Zhangxi and one executive Director, being Mr. Huang

Junmou. Mr. Lin Zhangxi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings on 30 March 2021 and 23 December
2021 to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management, the

remuneration policy and remuneration structure of the Company.

The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain, provide incentive and reflect their individual performance by
a reasonable remuneration package. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors mainly includes the director's fee which is a matter
for the Board to decide by reference to the duties and responsibilities of the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors and their participation in

the Scheme.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and the role and responsibilities
delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are, among other things, to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of Directors and evaluate the structure and composition
of the Board. In the nomination procedures, the Nomination Committee makes reference
to criteria including reputation of candidate for integrity, accomplishment, experience,

professional and educational backgrounds.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, being
Ms. Zhao Jinlin and Mr. Qian Haomin and one executive Director, being Mr. Huang

Junmou. Mr. Huang Junmou is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 30 March 2021 to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors to determine their eligibility and discussed the re-appointment of

directors and succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a nomination policy in March 2019. This policy aims to set out the
approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, and to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of

the Company's business.
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The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s) for
directorships to the Board by giving due consideration to criteria including but not limited

to (collectively, the “Criteria"):

(a)  Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational

background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time and

relevant interest;

() Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries

the Company's business is involved in;

(d)  Compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent non-executive Director;

(e)  Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board; and

(g)  Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend retiring Director(s) to the
Board for re-appointment by giving due consideration to the criteria including but not

limited to:
(@) The overall contribution and service of the retiring Director(s) to the Company,
including but not limited to the attendance of the meetings of the Board and/or

its committees and general meetings where applicable, in addition to the level of

participation and performance on the Board and/or its committees; and

(b)  whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the Criteria.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties including:

. to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and

Directors; and

. to review the Company's compliance with CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report in the annual report of the Company.

The Board has performed the above corporate governance duties during the year ended

31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a

timely manner.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report on pages | 13 to |18 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal control system
of the Group and review their effectiveness at least once a year. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. A defined management structure with specified limits of authority and
responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
maintaining proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for

internal use or for publications, and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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The Company's risks are identified from operations in its established enterprise-wide
risk assessment methodologies. The Company periodically reviews each position of the
operating departments and other functional departments to identify, analyse and evaluate
the risks. The risk assessment results and the proposed internal control measures are
submitted to the Directors and senior management of the Company for review and
approval. The Directors and senior management of the Company are also responsible for
supervising the effectiveness of implementation and future execution of the risk control

measurement.

The Company has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk management and
internal control systems. The results of the internal audit and review are reported to
the executive Directors and the Audit Committee. The Group has engaged Zhonghui
Anda Risk Services Limited (“Zhonghui Anda") to conduct a review on the effectiveness
of the major cycles of the Group's internal control system for the year ended 31
December 2021. Such review covered material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and it did not reveal any significant defects. Zhonghui Anda
has reported major findings and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's internal audit function and is satisfied with its
adequacy and effectiveness for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Audit Committee
also reported the risk management assessment conducted by Zhonghui Anda to the

Board in the Board meeting held on 30 March 2022.

Relevant recommendations made by Zhonghui Anda have been properly followed up by

the Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures and practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems, and considered
the risk management and internal control systems are effective and adequate in all material

aspects in both design and operations.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 3| December 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB1,966 million and RMB0.456 million respectively. Non-audit services
performed by the external auditors included review of the Group's interim results, agreed
upon procedures in connection with the Group's connected transactions and preliminary

announcement of 2021 final results.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Hung Hing Hung and Ms. Wong Wai Ling are the joint company secretaries of the
Company. Ms. Wong Wai Ling is a vice president of a corporate services provider, SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, and assists Mr. Hung Hing Hun in
company secretarial affairs. The primary corporate contact person of Ms. Wong Wai Ling

at the Company is Mr. Hung Hing Hung.

During the year ended 3| December 2021, Mr. Hung Hing Hung and Ms. Wong Wai Ling
have undertaken not less than |15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating policies
on remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out

in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

The senior management's (including the executive Director) remuneration for the year

ended 31 December 2021 is within the following bands:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company and the Board believe that effective communication with Shareholders
and other investment community is essential for enhancing investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies, improving the level of corporate governance
transparency and strategic credibility. The Company's objectives on investor relations
are to maintain strong contacts with investors, to provide them with accurate and timely
information and to listen to Shareholders’ suggestions and concerns, and answer raised

questions sincerely.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman,
non-executive Director, independent non-executive Directors, and the chairmen and the
chairlady of all Board Committees (or their delegates) will make themselves available at

general meetings to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The 2022 annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company will be held on Thursday, 23
June 2022.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
www.nnk.com.hk, where up-to-date information and updates on the Company's business
operations and development, financial information, corporate govemance practices and

other information are available for public access.

The Company and the Board value the views and the inputs of Shareholders and
investors. The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and Shareholders in
relation to the development of the Company to the Company's investor relations team

via email or telephone.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy, which aims to set out the
principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration,
payment or distribution of its profits, as dividends to the Shareholders. According to the
dividend policy, the Board shall take into account the following factors of the Group when

considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

. operation requirements;

. eamings;

. financial condition;

. capital requirements; and

. any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at
Shareholder's meeting on each substantial issue at general meetings, including the election

of individual Directors.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles, general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more Shareholders deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at 40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in the event that the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one Shareholder which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong,
or in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expensed incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the

Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Articles, no person shall, unless recommended by the
Board, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless
during the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there has been given to the
company secretary notice in writing by a member of the Company (not being the person
to be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given,
of his intention to propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed by

the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or Cayman Islands Companies Law for
Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meeting. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph headed "Procedures for

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company's
Hong Kong share registrar, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board could send their enquiries to the Company'’s headquarters and principal
place of business in the PRC at 5/F, Building F5, TCL International E City, No. 1001
Zhongshan Yuan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC,

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An amended and restated memorandum of association and Articles of the Company
was adopted on 4 December 2015 and took effect from 7 January 2016. The Company
has not made any changes to its constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2021. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the Company's

website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control measures, the
Company understands its duties under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), and adheres to the important principle of timely publication of
the inside information. The Company abides by the “Guide on disclosure of inside
information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission, and has developed
a complete system of internal procedures and internal control measures for processing
and publication of information in order to ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate

disclosure of relevant information to the public and regulatory authorities.

The Company has established an inside information handling team which consists
executive Directors, chief financial officer and company secretary and investor relations
to identify, evaluate and report to the Board about any potential inside information. The
Company is required to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably practicable
in accordance with SFO and Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company also included in its information disclosure polices a
strict prohibition on the unauthorized use of confidential or inside information. The Board
will determine further escalation and appropriate handling the dissemination of inside

information.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is pleased to present this environmental, social and governance report (“ESG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2021, pursuant to the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Reporting Guide provided in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
(the “ESG Guide"), which sets out the Group's policies and practices in four aspects,
namely environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community involvement. The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Guide and complies with the principle of “comply or explain” provision in the Listing
Rules. The ESG Report is designed to allow Shareholders, investors (including potential
investors) and the public to have a more comprehensive and profound understanding of

the corporate governance and culture of the Company.

The Group is committed to put emphasis on environmental protection and sustainable
development. The Group strives to utilize resources efficiently and effectively in workplace
and reduce impacts on the environment; raise its social responsibility and improve well-
being of its employees; and demonstrate the Group's commitment to the corporate
social responsibility. Apart from pursuing corporate profits, the Group also took into
consideration the sustainable development of the environment, the society and corporate
governance in all aspects of the business operation of the Group, so that those standards

could be sustained.

The Board is responsible for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has
established an ESG working team to engage the management and employees across all
functions in order to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their materiality to the
Group's business as well as the Company's stakeholder, through reviewing the Group's
operations and internal discussions. Disclosures relating to the material ESG issues
identified have been included in this ESG Report pursuant to the ESG Guide. This ESG
Report focuses on mobile top-up services business, the principal business of the Group.
It covers the operations of the Group's PRC operating entity, Shenzhen NNK (the
“Operating Entity").
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group maintains communication with various stakeholders which refer to groups
and individuals that materially influencing or affected by the Group's business. Through
various channels, the Group can timely access the latest request of the stakeholders
and proactively respond to their requests in order to foster the Group's capability in
fulfilling its environmental and social responsibilities and achieving the Group's sustainable

development objectives.

M EREE SR

AEBERZMEEEE (HHITREEE
BELEAZENERRLEA) RFEAR &
BEERE  AKEA REERNEARE
HRFER  YTHERAEBFR  UMEER
SERTREMMEEML  ERAEENF
BRRBBROEN

Stakeholders MEEEE Communications and Responses BEREE

. Customers . g Customers satisfaction survey EFmEERE
Customers feedback EPRE
Commercial communication BRBIE
Service complaint and response R REE

«  Shareholders/investors +  BRER REH Shareholders’ meeting &N
Annual report/Interim report Fil,/ R
Announcement and notice NERBE

Group websites and WeChat
public account

Direct communication

. Suppliers . e Site visit and evaluation
Contract execution
Cooperation negotiation
Suppliers evaluation system
Product quality

Corporate reputation

oo

. Employees . = Induction training

\
/

Regular staff training and activity
Communication meeting

Employee feedback mechanism
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R HERERES

sustainability while continuing its business growth. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection to its employees. To put into
practice, the Group has implemented a series of environmental-friendly measures
in the workplace to minimize its environmental impacts. The Group seizes every
opportunity to engage its staff in supporting green initiatives in daily operations to
call for collective effort in sustaining the environment. To this end, the Group has
introduced several initiatives to improve energy efficiency, minimize greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions and enhance indoor air quality. For the year ended 3|
December 2021, the Group has complied with all relevant environmental laws and

regulations.

Stakeholders B E Communications and Responses BEREE
Government and «  BUSKEEEHF]  Direct communication ERER
Regulatory Authorities Relevant conference Vel
Field visit BiiRs
Compliance management BRER
Policy compliance BEER
Media - KR Announcement and notice NERBEE
Interview R
Group websites and WeChat SRR RIMERTR
public account
Community . fR Volunteer activity EREEEE
Donation to community ZanE i
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Emissions

As a specialized online mobile top-up service provider in the PRC, the Group's
operations do not involve in production-related air, water and land pollution that
are regulated by applicable laws and regulations in the PRC. For the year ended 3|
December 2021, the Group did not produce hazardous waste or harmful pollutants
in the course of its business. The Group has always been actively seeking various
environmental protection measures to reduce the indirect impact of business

development on the environment.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “A3 The Environmental and Natural
Resources” in this ESG Report, the Group considered only limited non-hazardous
waste was produced in the course of business, therefore relevant data for the year

was not available.

The carbon emissions resulting from the daily operations of the Group mainly

come from the GHG emissions generated from electricity use.
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The Group also realized that transportation by any means can result in GHG
emissions. As the Group has extensive and numerous channel partners in different
regions in the PRC, travelling on business trip is also one of the major contributions
to GHG emissions. As at 31 December 2021, due to unavoidable commercial
activities, the total emissions of GHG of the Group was 13,798.1Kg, representing
an increase of 3,095.8Kg of GHG emissions as compared with 10,702.3Kg as of
31 December 2020. The total emissions intensity of GHG was 125.4Kg/employee,
as compared with 152.9Kg/employee as at 3| December 2020. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in business trips due to outbreak of COVID-19
persisted in 202 1. The Group aims at monitoring GHG emissions by not more than
25,000kg for the year ending 31 December 2022. To achieve this target, the Group
will continue to encourage its employees to conduct meeting with channel partners
and suppliers by video conferencing and teleconferencing and thus minimize GHG
emissions. In addition, the Group also encourages staff to take public transportation
in order to reduce GHG emissions. The Group has also adopted measures such
as maintaining Company's vehicles and tires status on regular basis, and switching
off idle engines during long time waiting to reduce energy consumption in order to

reduce GHG emissions.

Use of Resources

With the vision of protecting the planet and incorporating environmental
sustainability into its business function and processes, the Group proactively seeks
opportunities to enhance operating efficiency in workplace to reduce the use
of resources. The Group closely monitors the utilization of resources and takes

remedial actions whenever necessary.

Staff are well informed of Group's energy-saving measures through different
communication channels, such as intranet and regular meetings. The Group

continuously cultivates its staff awareness and encourages their behavioral change.
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As disclosed above, several measures have been implemented to improve energy
saving in the Group's workplace. The followings are examples of energy saving
measures adopted by the Group:

- maximizing the use of natural light and energy-saving systems;

- zoning for optimal control of lighting and air-conditioning;

- using energy-saving light bulbs, installing and purchasing energy-efficient office

equipment;

- maintaining the room temperature at an average of 26 C;

- maintaining air conditioning systems and cleaning the filters of air conditioners

on a regular basis;

- switching off air conditioning systems and lighting in vacant working areas

after operation hours;

- turning off office equipment when not in use;

- switching off water dispenser after operation hours; and

- putting reminder message about the importance of energy and resources

savings on or next to office equipment.
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While complying with environmental laws and regulations, the Company strongly
encourages all employees to focus on energy conservation and emission reduction
in their work and reduce GHG emissions and promote indoor air quality. As at
31 December 2021, the Group used a total of 271,863kWh of electricity, an
increase of 62,059kWh of electricity as compared with 209,804kWh as at 31
December 2020. Such increase was mainly due to a new office premise in Chengdu
and an increase in numbers of employees in 2021. The electricity consumption
intensity was 99.0kWh/square meters for the year ended 31 December 2021, as
compared with 213.1kWh/square meters for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Energy consumption efficiency goal was not set during the reporting year as energy

consumption for the business of the Group is immaterial.

The Group does not involve any production and manufacturing processes,
however, the Group still persists on raising staff awareness of water conservation
and regularly checking office pipes to prevent leakage. The Group encourages
employees to save water. For the year ended 3| December 2021, the Group
used a total of 1,182 tonnes of water, an increase of 605 tonnes of water from as
compared with 577 tonnes of water used as of 3| December 2020. Such increase
was mainly due to a new office premise in Chengdu and an increase in numbers
of employees. The water consumption intensity was 10.7 tonnes/employee for
the year ended 31 December 2010, as compared with 7.5 tonnes/employee for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group aims at monitoring the water
consumption to not more than 1,000 tonnes for the year ending 31 December
2022. To achieve this target, the Group will continue to encourage its employees
to actively participate in the activities of saving water resources within the Group

and to do its best to protect water resources.

Due to the nature of business, the Group does not use any packaging material

during the course of its business.

R HERERES

EETRRERRERNAER - RAF
BB EEEEATIEFPERED
BEREE AR ERBHRERSEEN
EREE -RMZTE—F+ZA=1—
B AEEGAEH7I863EE &
RZZEZTF+=A=+—H#209,804
EMe2,059% - ZEMEEZHR
202 | FAERKERRTIE I N5 P KB B AR
BB - BE_T-_—F+-_A=+
—BLFE REBEARI9.0E /F
AR MRBE_ZT_TF+_A=T
—AUEFEA23IE/FHK - &R
FRARAEEEBMEWIEX - it
EEFE AL EHIERLRE A RER
=

REBW A2 BT 4 EREERE
Kl AREDHERBREEETIN
EKERT T HRERAEEE ﬁ%ﬁ
Ko AEEHERERBEK - BHE
—F+ZA=+—BLFE  AEEF
AEH1 128K BHRE_T_TF
T RA=+—BEAH5778KIE 605
WE7K - FZIEINEE R AHM2021 FEMKH
FTIZ I NG T R B B ABUSIETE - &
E-T-THFET-_A=+T—HILFE "
RKZERIOTHE,/ A MREBE=
Z_ZF+ZA=T—BLEFEARTS
W/ AN - BEZT-Z_F+A=+
—BIEFE AEEMEEREERK
BB 1,000 - BEKIER R
REREESRHEREEEAEENEE
B2BELKEREHURFEAE HIR
EXKEIR

AREBKEE - AEREREEBBRET
W MERER B HY -

FEREIERAT 2021 F5 53



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - HERERES

A3

54

The Environmental and Natural Resources

Waste management and reduction are crucial to conservation of the earth’s finite
resources. In order to improve waste management mechanisms, the Group has
adopted various waste reduction measures, especially in cutting down paper
consumption in the course of operation and purchase of paper made scratch top-

up cards.

The Group encourages staff to view the documents on electronic devices instead of
printing out hard copies. When printing is unavoidable, duplex printing is defaulted
and staffs are encouraged to reuse the single-sided printed papers. The designated
collection points have been set up in the workplace to facilitate paper and toner
cartridges recycling. Staff are also advised to reuse office consumables. For the
year ended 3| December 2021, the Group used a total of approximately 78,000
pieces of paper (2020: 90,000 pieces). The Group will continue to recommend
green office and conserve resources. The Group will continue to contribute to
the sustainable development of mankind, while continuously enhancing its business

capabilities.

Regarding to the Group's paper made top-up cards inventory, the Group has
chosen to purchase larger proportion of virtual top-up cards, supplemented by
a small amount of prepaid paper made top-up cards. For the year ended 3|
December 2021, the Group purchased a total of 151,642 pieces of paper made
top-up cards, a decrease of 91.5% as compared with 1,787,253 cards for the year
ended 31 December 2020, For the already-purchased paper made top-up cards,
the Group stipulates that once the prepaid card are used, they shall be sent to the
designated collection points for paper recycling so as to reduce the waste of paper

and increase the paper recycling rate.
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The Group understands that good air and water quality are vital to health. The
Group cares about its staff and therefore makes every effort to provide a healthy
workplace environment for them. The Group has implemented various measures to
maintain good indoor air quality for staff, such as regular cleaning of air-conditioning
systems and filters of air conditioners. Professional cleaning personnel are engaged

to maintain the indoor environment of workplaces.

Climate change

As the Group engaged in mobile top-up services that can perform at in-house,
significant climate-related issues do not affect daily operating activities. In view
of extreme weather such as typhoons and thunderstorms that are occasionally
happened during summer, the Group provides guidance to employees whether
commuting to office is required under extreme weathers. The Group has policies
in place to ensure doors and windows are closed properly after work, in order to

prevent any damages by overnight typhoons and thunderstorms.

SOCIAL

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise
and regards human resources as its corporate wealth in maintaining its leading
position in the mobile top-up service industry. To empower our staff, the Group
continuously provides on-the-job trainings and development opportunities to
enhance employees’ career progression. The Group offers competitive employment
package and benefits to attract and retain competent persons. The Group also
cherishes employees’ well-being and strives to provide them with a healthy and safe

working environment.
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Employment

Workforce

The Group keeps track of the updates of the laws and regulations in the PRC and
has strictly abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the Labour Law of
the PRC (2 AR HEFBI % E))%) and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC (FF
#EARKMBILENA FE) for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group
has entered into labour contracts with all employees to protect their legitimate
rights and interests. Recruitment is open for all qualified personnel and conducted
in a fair, just and open manner, and recruitment information is announced with the
Company's information or disclosed to the public. Recruitment and promotion
are based on the candidates’ capability instead of other factors such as gender,
race, age and religion. All employees and candidates enjoy equal opportunities and
fair treatment. The Group has established a selection and evaluation system to
optimize the allocation of human resources and internal promotion. The philosophy
of developing a wide array of talents helps to build up the overall strength of the

Group and maintaining its leading position in the industry.

The Group has also established policies and procedures regarding the dismissal of
its employees. Compensation for dismissed personnel is well settled and the Group
has strictly abided by the provision of Labour Law of the PRC (2 A R £H0
BIZ5E0)%). The Group will conduct interviews and conversations with dismissed
personnel to comfort their frustrations and collect their feedbacks. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not received any complaint or involved

in any legal proceeding related to dismissal matters.

The comprehensive workforce is essential to optimize the Group's operation. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group had |10 full time employees, an increase of
42.8% as compared to the 77 employees as at 31 December 2020. The female
to male ratio is approximately 1.5:1. The Group's employees were allocated in
departments of research & development (24.5%), marketing sales and purchasing
(6.3%), customer services (38.2%), administration (6.4%) and others (24.5%). The
Group had a young and energetic workforce, with the 46.4% were aged below 30
and 43.6% were aged 31-40. The Group's employees were allocated in areas of
Guangdong Province (77.1%); Sichuan Province(22.7%) and Hong Kong, PRC (0.2%).
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Analysis of 2020 and 202 annual employee turnover rate TECEFR-BC-FFERERDY
®

The Group's employee tumover rate in 2021 was 29.94%, which was increased by AEENEERHER_T_—F

23.84% as compared to the turnover rate of 6.1% in 2020. The increase in turnover £29.94%  B_ZE_TFEM6I% LT

rate mainly attributed to the restructuring of customer service department. 23.84% ° m@]—?—tﬂ‘} ZRANERE
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Benefits and Compensation BRIRFMH

The Group endeavours to offer a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
package to attract, retain and motivate talent employees. Remuneration adjustments
are based on staffs’ performance and their overall quality of work. Based on the
performance and the potential of employees as well as the macroeconomic
environment, the Group offers attractive fringe benefits, reasonable level of salary
increase and flexible individual holiday arrangements so as to ensure a balanced life

for its employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group strictly abided by the provisions
of Labour Law of the PRC (2 AR £ FNEI25 8 7%) and the provisions of the
Company's staff handbook expressly specify the working hours and rest periods.
The Group adopts an eight-hour shift, five working days and the staff are also
entitled to statutory holiday. For the staff who cannot enjoy the statutory holiday
while on shift, the Group will provide overtime pay according to the relevant laws
and regulations. Apart from the usual annual leave and paid sick leave, the Group
also offers additional leave entitlements for other circumstances like marriage,
bereavement, matemnity, paternity and work-related injury, etc., which allows the
staff to have flexible leave arrangement. The Group also grants certain amount of

mobile credit as birthday gifts for all employees.
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Equal Opportunities

To ensure equal employment and advancement opportunities for all individuals,
the Group assesses individuals based on their experience, qualifications and abilities
when it comes to employment, remuneration and promotion. The Group's
employment practices will under no circumstances, be influenced or affected by a
candidate’s or employee's race, gender, age, disability or family status. The Group
offers equal working opportunities and discourages any kind of discrimination,

including discriminating on the basis of the personal characteristics of its employee.

Health and Safety

The Group has committed to provide employees with a safe working environment
and pay tremendous attention to employees” own health. The Group has strictly
abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the Labour Law of the PRC (1
EARKEMEE
BIRBR &) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

’%) and the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance (T

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work
environment. The Group is required to comply with occupational safety laws
and regulations imposed by the government authorities in the PRC. The Group
has implemented various occupational health and safety procedures to maintain
a safe work environment, including (i) providing guidelines for operational and
safety control procedures to all employees; (i) adopting protective measures at
its facilities; (iii) inspecting facilities regularly to identify and eliminate safety hazard;
and (iv) providing trainings to employees on safety awareness. Inspections and
management review of health and safety policies have been performed by the

Group to ensure the effectiveness of the arrangements, training and guidelines.
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R HEBRERES

In view of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has implemented

various hygiene measures in the workplace including;

+ Social distancing at the workplace

+  Temperature taking and recording before entering the Group's premises

* Use hand sanitizer provided

*  Wear face mask all the time

+ Disinfect entire office before starting work

*  Briefing matters about COVID-19 to all staff

In addition, the Group prioritizes the health and well-being of its employees.
In order to provide employees with sufficient medical care, in addition to the
medical insurance coverage required by laws, the Group has provided pension,
unemployment, occupational injury and maternity insurance for its employees in
compliance with applicable PRC laws and regulations. As the Group's business
expands, the Group will continue to regularly review and assess its risk portfolio
and adjust its insurance coverage based on its need and industry practice. The
Group has also provided annual medical check-ups for its employees and carried

out cultural and sports activities to promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

The Group did not encounter any major accident during the operation which
brought death of employees in each of the past three years including the year
ended 3| December 2021. During the vear ended 31 December 2021, the Group
did not encounter any accident which made any employees suffer loss of work days

because of injuries on job.
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Development and Training

The Group believes nurturing talents is the cornerstone of the Group's business
development. The Group has committed to offer different training opportunities
to its staff, to provide them with a suitable platform for career advancement
and professional development. The Group holds regular trainings for new
employees in order to build cohesion amongst new joiners as well as provide
in depth understanding of the Company's philosophy and strategies. The Group
also encourages employees to share their know-how and experience with other
departments’ colleague in order to improve everyone's comprehensive competence
and horizon. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company arranged
all the department to launch related training course within colleagues, such as
technical department courses, new employee orientation, work trainings and some
experience exchanging seminars. All of the employees participated the trainings and
the average training hours completed per employees were 3 hours. Directors and
senior management attended a two-hour continuous professional training courses

organized by Company's legal advisor.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and forced labour in the Group, and is
fully committed to create a work environment which respects human rights. Staff of
human resources department audit and verify staff identity during the recruitment

process to ensure that no child labour will be employed.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of rights and interests
for employees, strictly complies with the relevant provisions of national and local
employee rights and interests. The provisions of the Company's staff handbook
expressly specifies the working hours, rest and leave, labour protection and so on

to encourage work-life balance and prevent any compulsory labour.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group selects telecommunication operators, distributors of telecommunications
operators, e-commerce platform and third-party online game operators (collectively
“suppliers”), to support the business operations, and is committed as much as
possible to conduct the business with suppliers that act in a socially responsible
manner to meet the ethical expectations. As at 31 December 2021, the Company
had 81 suppliers (2020: 126). As a specialized mobile top-up service provider in the
PRC, the Group understands the importance to work closely with its supply chain
to ensure the sustainability of the Group's business. A supplier evaluation system
in terms of price, quality, cost, delivery and after-sales service has been established
by the Group and applies to all suppliers. The Group carries out long-term quality
monitoring and conducts regular reviews on all suppliers as well as random
examination on different suppliers to ensure sustainable quality material supplies
and services. The Group will also take into account suppliers’ reputation, their track
record of high corporate standards, expertise, capacity and etc. so as to select
the qualified suppliers and appropriate management's approval is required before
entering an agreement. Such procedures aim to support operational efficiency and

segregation of duties.

Distribution of suppliers by region
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Product Responsibilities

On the basis of strictly abiding by the relevant laws and regulations, the Group has
taken a variety measures to ensure the quality of service. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group was not aware of any violation of the laws and
regulations on its services (including advertising, labelling, service quality, customer
privacy protection and consumer right etc.) and any event that had material impact
on the Group. The Group did not have any services provided subject to recalls for

safety and health reasons.

The Group primarily engages in providing mobile top-up services and data usage
top-up services. The Group has developed a reliable, secure and scalable platform,
007ka top-up platform, through which the Group processes mobile top-up request
received from mobile users. The Group has committed to deliver high-quality top-
up services through its 007ka top-up platform and WeChat public account to the
customers. In order to ensure delivery of high-quality top-up services, the Group
has in place a real-time automatic mechanism to monitor irregularities of top-
up results such that administrator can deal with such irregularities proactively and
enable customers to enjoy fast, reliable and convenient top-up services. The Group
provides customer services on a 24/7 basis to enhance service quality, in particular,
to PRC banks, the Group has also established a 24-hour real-time monitoring
mechanism which reports irregularities in the systems to relevant personnel so
that irregularities can be dealt proactively. The above monitoring systems allow the
Group to quickly respond to and resolve network malfunction issues to ensure the
stability and security of the network and the mobile top-up services. In addition, the
Group has also maintained a dedicated customer service team to exclusively handle

enquiries or complaints from different channel partners’ customers.
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The customer service team and the customer hotline numbers are posted on the
websites of the channel partners and the Company's websites. Users who use
the mobile top-up services through the channel partners can make enquiries or
complaints through the customer hotlines of the Company. The Group defines
complaints as customers’ explicit or implicit expressions of dissatisfaction with the
mobile top-up or mobile data top-up services, which requires the actions to resolve
the problem and the response to the customers about the solution. During the year
ended 3| December 2021, the Group received 166 complaints from customers,
decreased by 9.3% as compared with 183 complaints for the year ended 3|
December 2020. These customer’s complaints are generally associated with delays
in the top-up process, unsuccessful recharges and failure of users to receive mobile
top-up results. Upon receipt of complaints from customers, the customer service
team immediately makes preliminary judgment on the nature of the complaints and
provides instruction to guide customers to solve problems. Unresolved complaints
relating to urgent or material issues are reported to the relevant managers on-duty.
The Group also closely monitors the feedbacks from customers. Through collecting
and analyzing customer feedbacks, the high-quality customer service team helps to
enhance customer satisfaction and loyalty. For cases of unsuccessful mobile top-up
requests, recharge of the mobile accounts for customers or refund of payments for

the mobile top-up services to customers per their requests are usually adopted.

The Group emphasizes the importance of protecting the privacy of its channel
partners and customers, and has complied with relevant laws and regulations
during the collection, processing and use of customer’s personal data. Employees
have signed the non-disclosure agreement to ensure the protection of customer’s
personal data. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not
receive complaints from channel partners or customers due to unauthorized

disclosure of information.
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Since the Group is principally engaged in providing mobile top-up services to
mobile users through electronic banking systems of the PRC banks, offline channels
and other channels including third-party online platforms, its own websites and
WeChat public account. No massive advertising campaigns were launched by the
Group. In addition, due to the nature of the Group's business, labelling of products

was not applicable to the Group.

Intellectual Properties

The Group's principal business is considered to be value-added telecommunications
services, a sector where foreign investment is subject to significant restrictions
under the PRC laws and regulations. Accordingly, we, as foreign investors, cannot
hold controlling interest in Shenzhen NNK; the PRC operating entity, which holds
certain intellectual properties required by the Group to operate its principal
business in the PRC. Accordingly, our wholly foreign-owned enterprise Daily
Charge Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Daily Charge Shenzhen”) entered into
an exclusive intellectual property purchase option agreement with Shenzhen NNK
the PRC operating entity, and its shareholders, pursuant to which Shenzhen NNK
agreed to grant an exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen to purchase certain
of Shenzhen NNK's intellectual properties, including but not limited to trademarks,
patents, domain names and copyrights and whether registered or unregistered,
purchased entirely or partially, at the minimum purchase price permitted by the
PRC laws and regulations. The exclusive intellectual property purchase option
agreement has no definite term commencing on |5 November 2021 until the
agreement is terminated upon the earlier occurrence of (i) Daily Charge Shenzhen
gives Shenzhen NNK 30 days’ prior written notice of termination; or (i) all the
intellectual properties of Shenzhen NNK have been transferred to Daily Charge
Shenzhen. Shenzhen NINK is not contractually entitled to terminate the exclusive
intellectual property purchase option agreement. Our management team regularly
monitors the impact of new regulations in the PRC on the exclusive intellectual
property purchase option agreement and the Group's principal business. At the
same time, the Group engages the PRC lawyers to review annually the contractual
arrangements (including the exclusive intellectual property purchase option
agreement) signed between Daily Charge Shenzhen and Shenzhen NINK and issue

legal opinions on the validity of such contractual arrangements.
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We are committed to protect the proprietary intellectual property. Our
management team and our operation team work closely to develop and maintain
the intellectual property portfolio owned by the Group, and ensure our intellectual

property are not infringed through research and control.

The Code of Ethics of the Group details the way of using intellectual property
from other companies and individuals in compliance with the laws and regulations
by our operation team when necessary. Our non-disclosure agreements protect
the intellectual property shared among us, the suppliers, distributors, dealers, other

customers and contract employees from any infringement or piracy.

Anti-corruption

The Company has strictly abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the
Criminal Law of the PRC (R EE A RZMEIE), the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the PRC (FEARKMBRTEEFHFE) and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of PRC (FZE AR £MBEIR E#E) for the year ended 31
December 2021. The Group is committed to prevent and monitor any malpractice
or unethical actions. The Group maintains and effectively implements whistle-
blowing procedures for anti-corruption and anti-fraud and is committed to promote
integrity and prevent unethical issues. The Group encourages the reporting of
suspected business irregularities and provides clear channels specifically for this

purpose.

The Group requests its staff to maintain a high level of business ethics to protect
the interests and business operations of the Group. To reinforce staff's integrity, the
Group has established the code of conduct and laid down procedures in the staff
handbook to fight against corruption, bribery, extortion and fraud. The Group has
established regulations and procedures to prevent and monitor money laundering in
the operations. All new joiners are well briefed of these regulations and procedures
during orientation and existing members can assess relevant information in the
Group's intranet to raise their awareness on anti-corruption, anti-fraud and anti-
money laundering. The Directors, senior management and heads of departments
have attended an one hour of anti-corruption external training provided by the

corporate service consultant of the Company.
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When suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of duty, abuse
of power, receiving bribes, staff can report to the secretariat of the Board for
investigation and resolution. The secretariat will then carry out investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator or law enforcement authority when

necessary.

The Group is committed to adhere to the highest ethical standards. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not been a party to any corruption,
bribery or fraud proceedings and was not aware of any pending or threatened
proceedings related to corruption against the Group or any of the Directors. The
Group will continue to comply with ethical requirements and upholds its reputation

to prevent corruption.

Community Investment

The Group has not established a specific community policy, however, social care
is deep-seated in the Group's corporate culture and the Group is committed to
its corporate responsibilities by proactively participating in community and charity

works,
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is the provision of mobile top-up services to mobile
users in the PRC through electronic banking systems of the PRC banks, and other
channels, including third-party online platforms, the Group's self-operated websites and

WeChat public account.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
principal activities of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page
I'19. The financial position as at 31 December 2021 of the Group is set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 120 to 121. The cash flow of the
Group during the year 31 December 2021 is set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows on pages 123 to 124.

The Directors did not recommend payment of final dividend in respect of the year ended

31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman's
Statement on pages 5 to 7. A discussion on the key financial performance indicators of the
Group for year ended 31 December 2021 is provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 8 to |15 of this annual report. The review and discussion thereof form

part of this Report of the Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The following are among the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business of the

Group:

. The Group provides mobile top-up services through electronic banking systems
to customers of the PRC banks. The Group's business depends on establishing
and maintaining relationships with the PRC banks. The Group's failure to continue
the contractual relationship with the existing PRC banks or enter into business
relationships with additional PRC banks in a timely manner or on favorable terms
may impair the Group's ability to continually expand its business; changes in the rate
of commission fees charged by the PRC banks may also have a significant impact on

the Group's cost of revenue and gross profit margin;

. the Group's reliance on the PRC telecommunication operators and their
distributors to source mobile top-up credits, any deterioration or termination
of the Group's relationships with them may result in severe disruptions to the
Group's business operations, loss of revenues and a material and adverse effect
on the Group's financial condition and results of operations. The Group’s profit
margin may also be effected by the decline in the discounts offered by the PRC

telecommunication operators and their distributions in the future;

. the Group's ability to grow its business depends, in part, upon policies of the PRC
telecommunication operators. If the PRC telecommunication operators decide
to continue expand mobile top-up services or cooperate with the PRC banks or
third-party online platforms directly, the Group's results of operations may be

materially and adversely affected;

. the Group's business may face competition from the other mobile top-up services,
local branches of the three PRC telecommunication operators and E-commerce
platforms. If the Group or the PRC banks fail to compete effectively, the Group's
market share may decrease and the Group's business, financial condition and

prospect will be materially and adversely affected;
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. the Group's business and results of operations may be effected by the growth of
intemet market and mobile penetration and usage in the PRC, changes in customer
behaviors and preferences on the mobile top-up channels. Any decline in the
popularity of online top-up services in general, or the Group's failure to respond
to industry trends and customer requirements, may adversely affect the Group's

business and results of operations;

. development of the PRC telecommunication industry could be negatively affected
by factors such as unfavorable government policies and changes of consumer
preferences which may decrease spending on mobile telecommunication services. If
the PRC telecommunication industry does not develop as anticipated, the Group's
business may be harmed and the Group may need to adjust its growth strategy and

the Group's results of operation may be adversely affected; and

. the Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may
be influenced to a significant degree by political, economic and social conditions and

government policies in the PRC.

The details of risk factors are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” in the

prospectus of the Company dated 24 December 2015 (the “Prospectus”).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For the purposes of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM,

the Company's register of members will be closed during the following periods:
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AGM BREAFAE
. Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration No later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, |7 June 2022
R B AR 8P X AEE LR R R IR PNER-Z-_FXATLH(EHR) TFOR=15
. Closure of register of members Monday, 20 June 2022 to Thursday, 23 June 2022
EEReRRELTE CECCERAZTR (B ) EZT_FRAT=H(EHM)
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To be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly stamped instruments of transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the latest time as stated above.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2021 are set out in note

33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the change in the share capital of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2021 are set out in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in reserve of the Company (which is the same as distributable
reserve of the Company) during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note

32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not have distributable reserve available
for distribution to Shareholders. The distributable reserves are calculated under the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year ended 3|

December 2021 are set out in note |5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MAJOR CHANNEL PARTNERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the gross transaction value derived from
the Group's five largest channel partners accounted for approximately 94.3% of the
Group's total gross transaction value. The Group's largest channel partner contributed to

approximately 77.7% of the Group's total gross transaction value.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the cost of sourcing from Group's five
largest suppliers who are telecommunication operators and distributors accounted for
approximately 44.0% of the Group's total sourcing cost. The cost of sourcing from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 14.1% of the Group's total sourcing

cost.

As far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors nor his/her close associates and
none of the Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors possessing over 5%
of the interest in the issued share capital of the Company) possessed any interest in the

Group's five largest channel partners and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Relationships with Employees

The Group believes that employees are its greatest assets. The Group believes that a
good working environment promotes employees’ physical and psychological well-being.
The Group provides on-the-job training and career development opportunities to its
employees to enhance staff professional skills and retain talents. The Group provides
competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary

adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Relationships with Channel Partners
The Group's mobile top-up business consists of mobile top-up services through electronic
banking systems of the PRC banks and third-party online platforms, Group's self-operated

websites and Group's WeChat public account.
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The Group primarily provides mobile top-up services through electronic banking systems
of the PRC banks and the gross transaction value derived through electronic banking
systems accounted for approximately 98.0% of the total gross transaction value in 2021.
The Group maintained long-term cooperative relationships with the PRC banks as a
result of the Group's satisfactory service quality, strong brand recognition and reputation
and leading market position. The Group had an average of approximately eleven years
of business relationship with the five largest state-owned commercial banks. The Group
worked with 67 PRC banks, including the five largest state owned commercial banks and
10 of the 12 nation-wide joint stock commercial banks up to the end of 2021. The Group
also utilized other channels (third-party online platforms, Group's websites and its WeChat
public account) to provide mobile top-up services. The Group evaluates the effectiveness

and profitability of each channel when considering cooperation with the online platforms.

Relationships with Customers

The Group primarily provides mobile top-up services to mobile users, who are customers
of the Group's channel partners, including the PRC banks, offline channel partners and
other channel partners. In other words, customers of the Group's channel partners are
the Group's indirect customers. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the number
of mobile users who used the Group's services was approximately 7| million and the five

largest customers collectively contribute less than 30% of the gross transaction value.

Relationships with Suppliers

The Group primarily sources mobile top-up credits from the PRC telecommunication
operators and their distributors. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
business relationships with 81 suppliers. The Group maintained long term relationship with
most of suppliers, and the Group's five largest suppliers had an average of approximately

eight years of business relationships with the Group.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this annual

report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer) (Resigned on 28 October 2021)’

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangcheng (Resigned on 3 December 2021)?
Mr. XU Xinhua (Resigned on 28 October 2021)’

Mr. FAN Weiguo (Appointed on 28 October 2021, term of appointment ended on
10 February 2022 and re-appointed on 17 March 2022)

Mr. YU Zida

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi

Mr. QIAN Haomin

Ms. ZHAO Jinlin

Notes:

Mr. Yang Hua and Mr. Xu Xinhua both resigned as a Director due to their desire to devote

more time to their other business commitments.

Mr. Li Xiangcheng resigned as a Director due to his desire to devote more time to his other

business commitments.

Pursuant to Articles 16.2 of the Articles, Mr. Fan Weiguo will hold office until, and be

eligible for re-election at, the next following general meeting of the Company after his

appointment. Mr. Fan, being eligible, has offered himself for re-election at the forthcoming

AGM.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles, Mr. Lin Zhangxi and Ms. Zhao Jinlin will

retire in the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election

at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company are set

out on pages |6 to 22 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

The executive Director has entered into a service contract with the Company and is
appointed for a specific term of three years commencing from | January 2021 unless
terminated by not less than three months' notice in writing served by either the executive

Director or the Company.

Mr, Yu Zida and Mr. Fan Weiguo, the non-executive Directors, have entered into a
service contract with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing from
18 June 2020 and 17 March 2022 respectively unless terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company on 21 June 2020. Each of these letters of appointment is for a term of

three years commencing from 21 June 2020.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set
out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and recommending to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the chairman and chief

executive officer.

There was no service contract entered into/appointment letter signed by the Company
and any Directors to be re-elected in the forthcoming AGM which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors independent.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and five highest paid individuals for the
year ended 3| December 2021 are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the emolument policy of the Company is set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 35 and 41 of this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Directors' remuneration is subject to Shareholder’s approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties
and responsibilities, the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. No Directors, or any of their respective associates,
was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration for the year ended 31 December

2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and in the section
headed “Connected Transactions” of this annual report, no Director or an entity
connected with a Director has or had a material beneficial interest, directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance subsisting as at 31 December

2021 or at any time during the year ended 3| December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no Directors or their respective associates has
engaged in or has any interest in any business which were in competition or were likely to

compete, directly or indirectly with the business of the Group.

RELEVANT SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Relevant Shareholders (as defined below) or their subsidiary has or had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether
for the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 3| December 2021.
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COMPLIANCE OF THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into a deed of non-competition
(“"Non-Competition Deed") with Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, Mr. Li Xiangcheng,
Mr. Xu Xinhua, Fun Charge Technology, Happy Charge Technology Limited (“Happy
Charge Technology”), Cool Charge Technology Limited (“Cool Charge Technology”)
and Enjoy Charge Technology Limited (“Enjoy Charge Technology”) (collectively, the
“Relevant Shareholders™) on 23 September 2015, under which the Relevant Shareholders
jointly and severally agreed not to, whether as principal or agent whether undertaken
directly or indirectly (including through any associate, subsidiary, partnership, join venture
or other contractual arrangement of theirs) and whether for profit or otherwise, carry
on, engage, invest, participate or hold any right or be interested in or render any services
to or otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition, directly or indirectly,
or is likely to be in competition, directly or indirectly, with the business referred to in the
Prospectus that is carried on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of the

Group.

Notwithstanding the above, the foregoing restrictions do not preclude any of the Relevant
Shareholders from having any interest in shares of not more than 5% in any company
which is or whose holding company is listed on any recognized stock exchange even
though the business carried out by such company is or is likely to be in competition
with the business, provided that the aggregate number of shares held by the Relevant
Shareholders do not exceed 5% of the issued shares of such company and none of the
Relevant Shareholders is a director of such company or is entitled to appoint any director

of such company.

Each of the Relevant Shareholders has undertaken in the Non-Competition Deed that
during the term of the Non-Competition Deed, if a new business opportunity is made
available to any Relevant Shareholder or its/his respective associates, such Relevant
Shareholder will or will procure that its/his associates to notify the Company in writing
and provide to the Company all information that is reasonably necessary for the Company
to consider whether or not to pursue such business opportunity. For details of the
Non-Competition Deed, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling

Shareholders — Deed of Non-Competition” in the Prospectus.
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As stated in the prospectus, the Non-Competition Deed would become effective upon
listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 7 January 2016 and remain in full force
and be terminated upon the earlier of (i) the date on which the Relevant Shareholders
and its/his respective affiliates cease to be controlling shareholder of the company within
the meaning of the Listing Rules; or (ii) the Company’s shares no longer being listed on

the Stock Exchange.

As disclosed in the prospectus, the Relevant Shareholders were regarded as the
controlling shareholders of the Company due to the concert party agreement entered into
by Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, Mr. Li Xiangcheng and Mr. Xu Xinhua on |5 April
2015, and the concert party agreement was terminated on |5 May 2020. Accordingly, the
Relevant Shareholders were no longer controlling shareholders of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021, and thus the Non-Competition Deed has lapsed and
ceased to have effect during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interest or short positions of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or
which would be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code were as follows:
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Long Position in the ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
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REDABBRNEE (K4 ])

Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held capital®
HEBTRE
BEEpE 5%/ EmtE BFRRHHEUA BB
Mr. Huang Junmou(” Interest in controlled corporation 64,500,000 15.54%
e Al RIpLE R
Notes: Mzt

(1) Mr. Huang Junmou beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of Fun Charge
Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Junmou was deemed to be interested in
64,500,000 Shares held by Fun Charge Technology.

(2)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's total issued share
capital of 415,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which was
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

(1) BEFLEEEHEHFFun Charge Technology
2 EEBITIRA - RIFE S LG R
ERF LA AR Fun Charge Technology
£ #964,500 000 B A7 - A #E o

Q) BEABSHEIME-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H
AN B2 EBE BATIA415,000,000 5Bk {7 5+

s
B o
i
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following persons
(other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed or taken
to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which are
required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of

the SFO were as follows:

FTERRNESZRAR

RZBEZ—F+-A=+—B BEZMH
- TIAL (BERARARRSTHAER
M) R ERBEAR R 3 E R D sk ARRA R0 P
BIREE» R ERPIEXVERF2 K375
BEXBETRBERCHREARAREE 7MY
BIRPIE3BHAFENELCMANER Y,/

A .
SIRE -

g

Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued share
Substantial shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held capital®
HERITRE
FTERR 51/ BEME BEROHE BHEIHLE
Fun Charge Technology!" Beneficial owner 64,500,000 15.54%
EHBEAA
Spring Harbour Development Limited Beneficial owner 119,400,000 28.77%
("Spring Harbour")® ERBEAAN
Ms. Lam Ching Wan (“Ms. Lam")® Interested in controlled corporation 119,400,000 28.77%
MEFmzt ((HgLt])e RIpEE S
China Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 60,000,000 14.46%
EHBEAA
Mr. Huang Shaowu® Interested in controlled corporation 60,000,000 14.46%
BRRAELED RIpLE RS
Harvest Gold Capital Limited® Beneficial owner 56,100,000 13.52%
EHlEAA
Mr. Chong Wing Kin® Interested in controlled corporation 56,100,000 13.52%
oK@ RIpLE R
Notes: MIsE -

(1) Mr. Huang Junmou is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital
of Fun Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Junmou was deemed to be
interested in 64,500,000 Shares held by Fun Charge Technology.

(2)  Ms. Lam is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of Spring
Harbour. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lam was deemed to be interested in 119,400,000 Shares
held by Spring Harbour.
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(3)  Mr. Huang Shaowu is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of
China Charge Technology Limited (“China Charge Technology”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Huang Shaowu was deemed to be interested in 60,000,000 Shares held by China Charge
Technology.

(4)  Mr. Chong Wing Kin is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Harvest Gold Capital Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chong Wing Kin was deemed to be
interested in 56,100,000 Shares held by Harvest Gold Capital Limited.

(5)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's total issued share
capital of 415,000,000 Shares as at 3|1 December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, no

Shareholders has agreed to waive or waived any dividends.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person who will have an
interest or short position in Shares or underlying Shares which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme prepared in accordance with Chapter |7 of the
Listing Rules on 14 December 2015 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) as defined in the Scheme to
recognize and acknowledge their contribution to the Group and motivate them to higher

levels of performance.

Certain provisions of the Scheme were amended and approved in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 4 November 2016, the definition of Eligible
Participants in the Scheme was amended to include the advisors, consultants, suppliers,
customers, distributors, business partners and such other persons who, in the opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries as participants eligible to participate in the Scheme.
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Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to Eligible Participants options (the RIEF 2 EZSBBRETEFIHNHKE

“Option(s)") to subscribe for Shares subject to the terms and conditions stipulated inthe ~ FRIEHMAB RS EER L ERE ([BR
Scheme. ) AR
(i)  Purpose of the Scheme () SEINEM
The purpose of the Scheme is established to recognize and acknowledge the R EMANER BT RRBEER
contributions that Eligible Participants had or may have made to the Group. The SERECRAFGEEHAEBELNE
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a personal B o GBI ER2EERE—ER
stake in the Company with the view to achieve the objective of attracting and ARAEEEAERNEE - FEARS
retaining high caliber Eligible Participants to motivate the Eligible Participants to RGBT EBENEERSEE WM
higher levels of performance and to promote the success of the Group’s business. BeERSEEENEERRIEDA
EEEEHOMY ©
(i)  Participants of the Scheme (i) FrEAMNZEE
Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant options to: BEE - EFGURER TIALE
R -
(i) any full-time employees of the Company or its subsidiaries; () ARAKEMBARMEMEZE
B8 :
(i) any executive or non-executive Directors (including independent (i)  ANRAIKEMNBAREREAITHE
non-executive Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries; and FHNTES (BREBELIFENTE
£) R
(i) the advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors, business partners (i) EAFS - FAED - LER - KF -
and such other persons who, in the opinion of the Board, will contribute or NI EBBHREZERR
have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. BRBHANT R,/ EHE R

BARELERBREEMAL -
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(ii)

Acceptance of an offer of Options

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the grantee and
to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document constituting acceptances
of the Options duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received
by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date. Such payment shall
in no circumstances be refundable. Any offer to grant an Option to subscribe for
Shares may be accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for which it
is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares
on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly
stated in the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the Opinion.
To the extent that the offer to grant an Option is not accepted by any prescribed

acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be granted
under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the total number of Shares issued on 7
January 2016, being 40,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 9.64% of the
Company's issued share capital as at the date of this annual report, excluding
for this purpose Shares which would have been issuable pursuant to Options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (or any other
share option schemes of the Company). Subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board

may:

(i) refresh this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of

the approval by our Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

(i)

(iv)
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(i)

grant options beyond the 0% limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board. The circular issued by the Company to the
Shareholders shall contain a generic description of the specified Eligible
Participants who may be granted such Options, the number and terms of
the Options to be granted, the purpose of granting Options to the specified
Eligible Participants with an explanation as to how the Options serve
such purpose, the information required under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to the effect of alterations to
capital, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
shall be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the Scheme)

if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise

of the Options granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of

the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible

Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of

the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of Options in excess of

this 1% limit shall be subject to:

the issue of a circular by the Company containing the identity of the Eligible
Participant, the numbers and terms of the Options to be granted (and
Options previously granted to such participant) the information as required
under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of
the Listing Rules; and
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(vi)

(vii)

(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time with
such Eligible Participant and his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
abstaining from voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise
price) of Options to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board meeting at which the
Board proposes to grant the Options to such Eligible Participant shall be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the subscription

price of the Shares.

Option Period

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the Option is deemed to be granted and accepted
and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
Option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no Option may be exercised more than |0 years after it has been
granted. No Option may be granted more than |0 years after the date of approval
of the Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years

from the date of its adoption.

The subscription price per Share
The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall

determine, save that such price must be at least the highest of:

() the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant in respect of the

relevant Options;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant or where the Company has been
listed for less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the

closing price; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

(vii)
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(viiiy Remaining life of the scheme
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on |4

December 2015.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and up to the date of this annual report, no Option

had been granted, exercised, lapsed nor cancelled under the Scheme.

For details of the Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Statutory and General

Information — F. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2021 was the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Existing Contractual Arrangements and New Contractual Arrangements

The Company is primarily engaged in, through Shenzhen NNK; the provision of
mobile top-up services and data usage top-up services (the “Principal Business"),
which is considered to be value-added telecommunications services, a sector where
foreign investment is subject to significant restrictions under the PRC laws and
regulations. Accordingly, the Company, as foreign investors, cannot directly hold
controlling interest in Shenzhen NNK; the Company's PRC Operating Entity, which
holds certain licenses and permits required for the operation of the Company's
Principal Business. As a result, the Company's wholly foreign-owned enterprise (the
“WFOE"), Daily Charge entered into a series of contractual arrangements with
Shenzhen NINK, the Company's PRC Operating Entity, and its shareholders (the
“Existing Contractual Arrangements”) in order to conduct the Principal Business
in the PRC and to exercise effective control over the operations of, and enjoy
all economic benefits of, the Company's PRC Operating Entity. The series of the
Existing Contractual Arrangements as a whole allow the financial performance and
economic benefits of the business of Shenzhen NNK to be included in the financial
information of the Company as if the Company is the parent company of Shenzhen
NNK: Pursuant to the Existing Contractual Arrangements, Shenzhen NNK has an
obligation to pay the consulting and technical supporting services fees to WFOE
and WFOE has legal rights to retain such fees as its revenue, and the Company is
able to acquire the entire profit (including the retained eamings) of Shenzhen NNK

under the terms of the Existing Contractual Arrangements.
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Shenzhen NNK was owned as to 31.5% by Mr. Huang Junmou, 21% by Mr. Yang
Hua, 18.7% by Mr. Li Xiangcheng, 8.8% by Mr. Xu Xinhua and 20% by Mr. Huang
Shaowu (collectively, the “Existing Registered Shareholders”). Daily Charge
Shenzhen, Shenzhen NINK and the Existing Registered Shareholders, as the case

may be, entered into the following agreements as at 31 December 2020:

The management and operation agreement dated 4 March 2015 and its
supplemental agreement dated 16 April 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Existing Registered Shareholders,
pursuant to which Daily Charge Shenzhen agreed to provide to Shenzhen
NNK and its subsidiaries management and operation services. Pursuant
to the management and operation agreement, Shenzhen NNK shall pay
to Daily Charge Shenzhen a service fee that equals to 100% of the annual
revenue of Shenzhen NNK after deducting costs and expenses (except the
service fee) incurred during the course of management and operation of
Shenzhen NNK and any taxes, the prior-year loss (if any) and contribution
of social insurance and housing provident fund by Shenzhen NNK in any
given year. In addition, Daily Charge Shenzhen may at its absolute discretion
adjust the service fee or agree to any postponed payment so as to avoid any

financial difficulty of either Shenzhen NNK or itself.
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The exclusive option agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among
Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Existing Registered
Shareholders, pursuant to which the Existing Registered Shareholders
irrevocably and unconditionally granted an exclusive option to Daily Charge
Shenzhen which entitles Daily Charge Shenzhen to elect to purchase, when
permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the equity
interests in Shenzhen NNK from the Existing Registered Shareholders
itself or through its designated person(s). Such designated person(s) shall
be appointed by Daily Charge Shenzhen in its sole discretion. The transfer
price of the relevant equity interests shall be the minimum purchase price
permitted under PRC law, and the Existing Registered Shareholders have
undertaken to retumn in full the consideration received in relation to such

transfer of equity interests to Daily Charge Shenzhen.

The entrustment agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Existing Registered Shareholders,
with an annexure of the power of attorney dated 4 March 2015 executed
by each of the Existing Registered Shareholders in favour of Daily Charge
Shenzhen and/or its designated person(s). Pursuant to the entrustment
agreement and the powers of attormey annexed thereto, each of the Existing
Registered Shareholders irrevocably agreed to authorize Daily Charge
Shenzhen or its designated person(s) to exercise all of his rights and powers
as shareholder of Shenzhen NINK; including the rights to convene and attend
shareholders’ meetings, to exercise voting rights in shareholders” meetings, to
appoint and dismiss directors and supervisors, to decide on any acquisition
or disposal of his equity interest in Shenzhen NNK or the winding-up or
dissolution of Shenzhen NNK,; to file documents with relevant government
authorities or regulatory bodies, and to exercise such other shareholders'

rights as stipulated under the articles of association of Shenzhen NNK.
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The equity pledge agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Existing Registered Shareholders,
pursuant to which the Existing Registered Shareholders agreed to pledge
all of their respective equity interests in Shenzhen NNK to Daily Charge
Shenzhen to secure performance of all their obligations and the obligations
of Shenzhen NNK under the management and operation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement and the entrustment agreement underlying the
Existing Contractual Arrangements. Under the equity pledge agreement, if
Shenzhen NINK declares any dividends during the term of the pledge, Daily
Charge Shenzhen is entitled to receive all dividends or other income arising
from the pledged equity interests, if any. If any of the Existing Registered
Shareholders or Shenzhen NNK breaches or fails to fulfil the obligations
under any of the aforementioned agreements, Daily Charge Shenzhen, as the
pledgee, will be entitled to dispose of the pledged equity interests, entirely
or partially.

The exclusive intellectual property purchase option agreement dated 4
March 2015 entered into between Shenzhen NNK and Daily Charge
Shenzhen, pursuant to which Shenzhen NNK agreed to irrevocably and
unconditionally grant an exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen to
purchase certain of Shenzhen NNK's intellectual properties, including but not
limited to trademarks, patents, domain names and copyright and whether
registered or unregistered, entirely or partially, at the minimum purchase

price permitted by the PRC laws and regulations.
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The detailed terms of which are set out in the section headed “History,
Reorganization and Corporate Structure — Contractual Arrangements” of the

Prospectus.

In addition, the Existing Registered Shareholders granted the individual appointed
by WFOE, to exercise their shareholder’s rights, including without limitation, to
declare, receive or decline the dividends or distribution. In the event that the
Existing Registered Shareholders receive any dividends or distribution of assets
declared by Shenzhen NNK; the Existing Registered Shareholders are required
to return the dividend or distribution of assets so received to WFOE. Therefore,
WEFOE controls the management and board of directors of Shenzhen NNK and
is able to acquire the entire profit generated from Shenzhen NNK under the

Contractual Arrangements.

On 15 November 2021, Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK, Shenzhen
Haimeng Investment Company Limited (“Shenzhen Haimeng"), Mr. Huang
Junmou, Mr Li Xiangcheng and Mr. Huang Shaowu (Shenzhen Haimeng, Mr.
Huang Junmou Mr. Li Xiangcheng and Mr. Huang Shaowu collectively, the “New
Registered Shareholders”) entered into a new contractual arrangements which
are on the same terms and conditions of the Existing Contractual Arrangements,
mainly due to the change of the nominal shareholders of Shenzhen NNK from
Mr. Yang Hua and Mr. Xu Xinhua to Shenzhen Haimeng, a company owned as to
80% by Ms. Lin Peizhen (“Ms. Lin") and 20% by Ms. Chen Yixi (“Ms. Chen"). (the
“New Contractual Arrangements”). The Existing Contractual Arrangements were
terminated concurrently. Shenzhen NNK is now owned as to 31.5% by Mr. Huang
Junmou, 29.8% by Shenzhen Haimeng, 18.7% by Mr. Li Xiangcheng and 20% by Mr.

Huang Shaowu.
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Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the New Registered Shareholders

entered into the following agreements as at 3| December 2021:

The management and operation agreement dated |5 November 2021
entered into among Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK, the New
Registered Shareholders, Ms. Lin and Ms. Chen, pursuant to which Daily
Charge Shenzhen agreed to provide to Shenzhen NNK management and
operation services. Pursuant to the management and operation agreement,
Shenzhen NNK shall pay to Daily Charge Shenzhen a service fee that
equals to 100% of the annual revenue of Shenzhen NNK after deducting
costs and expenses (except the service fee) incurred during the course of
management and operation of Shenzhen NNK and any taxes, the prior-year
loss (if any) and contribution of social insurance and housing provident fund
by Shenzhen NNK in any given year. In addition, Daily Charge Shenzhen may
at its absolute discretion adjust the service fee or agree to any postponed
payment so as to avoid any financial difficulty of either Shenzhen NNK or

itself.

The exclusive option agreement dated |5 November 2021 entered into
among Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the New Registered
Shareholders, Ms. Lin and Ms. Chen, pursuant to which the New Registered
Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally granted an exclusive option
to Daily Charge Shenzhen which entitles Daily Charge Shenzhen to elect
to purchase, when permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any
part of the equity interests in Shenzhen NNK from the New Registered
Shareholders itself or through its designated person(s). Such designated
person(s) shall be appointed by Daily Charge Shenzhen in its sole discretion.
The transfer price of the relevant equity interests shall be the minimum
purchase price permitted under the PRC law, and the New Registered
Shareholders have undertaken to retum in full the consideration received in

relation to such transfer of equity interests to Daily Charge Shenzhen.
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The entrustment agreement dated 15 November 2021 entered into among
Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK;, the New Registered Shareholders.
Ms. Lin and Ms. Chen, with an annexure of the power of attomey dated |5
November 2021 executed by each of the New Registered Shareholders in
favour of Daily Charge Shenzhen and/or its designated person(s). Pursuant
to the entrustment agreement and the powers of attorney annexed
thereto, each of the New Registered Shareholders. Ms. Lin and Ms. Chen
irrevocably agreed to authorize Daily Charge Shenzhen or its designated
person(s) to exercise all of his rights and powers as shareholder of Shenzhen
NNK; including the rights to convene and attend shareholders” meetings,
to exercise voting rights in shareholders’ meetings, to appoint and dismiss
directors and supervisors, to decide on any acquisition or disposal of the
New Registered Shareholders', Ms Lin's and/or Ms. Chen’s equity interest in
Shenzhen NNK or the winding-up or dissolution of Shenzhen NNK, to file
documents with relevant government authorities or regulatory bodies, and
to exercise such other shareholders' rights as stipulated under the articles of

association of Shenzhen NNK.
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The equity pledge agreement dated |5 November 2021 entered into
among Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the New Registered
Shareholders, pursuant to which the New Registered Shareholders agreed
to pledge all of their respective equity interests in Shenzhen NNK to
Daily Charge Shenzhen to secure performance of all their obligations and
the obligations of Shenzhen NNK under the management and operation
agreement, the exclusive option agreement and the entrustment agreement
underlying the New Contractual Arrangements. Under the equity pledge
agreement, if Shenzhen NNK declares any dividends during the term of
the pledge, Daily Charge Shenzhen is entitled to receive all dividends or
other income arising from the pledged equity interests, if any. If any of the
New Registered Shareholders or Shenzhen NNK breaches or fails to fulfil
the obligations under any of the aforementioned agreements, Daily Charge
Shenzhen, as the pledgee, will be entitled to dispose of the pledged equity

interests, entirely or partially.

The exclusive intellectual property purchase option agreement dated |5
November 202| entered into between Shenzhen NNK and Daily Charge
Shenzhen, pursuant to which Shenzhen NNK agreed to irrevocably and
unconditionally grant an exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen to
purchase certain of Shenzhen NNK's intellectual properties, including but not
limited to trademarks, patents, domain names and copyright and whether
registered or unregistered, entirely or partially, at the minimum purchase

price permitted by the PRC laws and regulations.
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Spring Harbour is a substantial shareholder of the Company and Ms. Lam Ching
Wan is the ultimate beneficial owner of Spring Harbour. Given Ms. Lin, who
entered into the New Contractual Arrangements as one of the New Registered
Shareholders, is the sister-in-law and accordingly an associate of Ms. Lam Ching
Wan, Ms. Lin is a connected person of the Company under Chapter [4A of the
Listing Rules. As Shenzhen Haimeng is a majority-controlled company held by Ms.
Lin, Shenzhen Haimeng is also deemed to be a connected person of the Company
under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. Meanwhile, the other three New
Registered Shareholders, Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Li Xiangcheng and Mr. Huang
Shaowu, remain as the nominal shareholders of Shenzhen NNK under the New

Contract Arrangements and as connected persons of the Company.
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Apart from the above, there was no new contractual arrangements entered into,
renewed or reproduced between the Group and the PRC Operational Entity
during the year ended 3| December 2021. There was no material change in the
Existing Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances during the period
from | January 2021 to 14 November 202 and there was no material change
in the New Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances during the
period from |5 November 2021 to 31 December 2021. None of the contracts
mentioned above has been unwound during the year ended 31 December 2021 as
none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of the contracts under the Existing

Contractual Arrangements and New Contractual Arrangements has been removed.

Set out below are certain key financial information of Shenzhen NNK as prepared
in accordance with the PRC accounting standards during the year ended 31
December 2021:
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Year ended

31 December
2021
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Total assets

90,585
367,158
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The Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are of the view
that the Existing Contractual Arrangements and New Contractual Arrangements
are (i) fundamental to the Group's legal structure and business operations; and (ii)
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a

whole.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26 November 2021 for

further details of the New Contractual Arrangements.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing connected

transactions of the Group.

Waiver from Stock Exchange and Annual Renew

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules; (ii) the requirement of setting a maximum aggregate
annual value, i.e. an annual cap, for the fees payable to Daily Charge Shenzhen under
the Existing Contractual Arrangements and New Contractual Arrangements; and (i)
the requirement of limiting the term of the Existing Contractual Arrangements and New
Contractual Arrangements to three vears or less, for so long as the Shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange subject to certain conditions as disclosed on pages 204 to 205 of the

Prospectus.
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RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE NEW CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS
AND THE ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY TO MITIGATE THE

RISKS

Risk associated with the New Contractual Arrangements
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

A RAERBANERE R

If the PRC government finds that the agreements that establish the
structure for operating the Company's business in the PRC do not
comply with the PRC laws and regulations, or if these regulations or their
interpretations change in the future, the Company could be subject to
severe penalties or be forced to relinquish the Company's interests in
those operations.

WP ERARRRYARREFREEXEORBNRENTS
REDERER - I FEARERBRRAMNE - AREH

XA BRERTSERERN ARG AER

The Company's New Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership and the Company's
PRC Operating Entity or its shareholders may fail to perform their

obligations under the Company's New Contractual Arrangements.
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The Directors will closely monitor the latest development of the
existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations (such as Foreign
Investment Law), and will take measures to ensure that the Company
is under the control of the PRC investors so as to comply with

relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.
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According to the entrustment agreement and powers of attorney,
equity pledge agreement and the management and operation
agreement, the arbitration tribunal may decide compensation for
the equity interests or property ownership of the PRC Operating
Entity or their shareholders, decide enforceable remedy or demand
a bankrupt on the PRC Operating Entity or their shareholders for
relevant business or enforceable asset transfer. Any party is entitled to
request the competent court to execute the arbitration award when
it comes into effect.
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Risk associated with the New Contractual Arrangements

BHENZHEHENER
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

AR PRI R R i

The Company may lose the ability to use assets held by its PRC
Operating Entity that are material to the operation of the Company's
business if the Company's PRC Operating Entity declares bankruptcy or

becomes subject to a dissolution or liquidation proceeding.
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The Company's New Contractual Arrangements may be subject to
scrutiny by the PRC tax authorities and additional taxes may be imposed.
A finding that the Company owes additional taxes could substantially

reduce the Company's net income and the value of the investment.
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Pursuant to the exclusive option agreements, in the event of a
mandatory liquidation required by the laws of PRC, the New
Registered Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally granted
an exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen which entitles Daily
Charge Shenzhen to elect to purchase, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the equity interests in Shenzhen
NNK from the New Registered Shareholders itself or through its
designated person(s). Such designated person(s) shall be appointed
by Daily Charge Shenzhen in its sole discretion. The transfer price
of the relevant equity interests shall be the minimum purchase price
permitted under PRC laws and the New Registered Shareholders
have undertaken to return in full the consideration received in relation
to such transfer of equity interests to Daily Charge Shenzhen.
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Having considered (i) the tax compliance certificate issued by
the relevant tax authorities; and (ii) that the Company has not
encountered any interference or encumbrances from any PRC tax
authority or other government authorities to the New Contractual
Arrangements, the Directors are of the view that the New
Contractual Arrangements are not likely to be challenged by the PRC
tax authority and other government authorities.

REZR() MERGREZLORHRARER k() ARFKRE
WA R ERBEEEIE GBS TS OLHHELEFT
BIHEMEMEREE  EERR - MANTH AR
BT SERE S ELh BUS I R L 5k

FEREEBRAT 2021 F3H 99



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Risk associated with the New Contractual Arrangements
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company
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The shareholders of the Company's PRC Operating Entity may have
conflicts of interest with the Company, which may materially and
adversely affect the Company's business.
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(d)

The independent non-executive Directors will review, on an
annual basis, the compliance with and enforcement of the
Non-Competition Deed that the Company entered into with
the Relevant Shareholders on 23 September 2015;

BUFKTEEREFER AR RAABREREN T~
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each of the Relevant Shareholders undertakes to provide
all information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and professional advisors
of the Company with regard to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Non-Competition Deed;
ARRREBFGRRUEBUFNTEENARAIRE
BRI HFRBETIATERETFEENMEE
VEREPTHER ;

each of the Relevant Shareholders will disclose decisions
on matters reviewed by our independent non-executive
Directors of the Company related to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Non-Competition Deed in the annual
report of, or by way of announcement; and
FARREERRFERIUNAEAABRBELIFNTE
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R

the Relevant Shareholders will make an annual confirmation on
compliance with their undertaking under the Non-competition
Deed in the report of the directors in Company's annual
report.
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Risk associated with the New Contractual Arrangements
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

AR PRI R R i

The New Contractual Arrangements between the Company's WFOE
and the Company's PRC Operating Entity may subject the Group to
increased income tax due to the different income tax rates applicable
to the Company's WFOE and the PRC Operating Entity and adversely

affect the Company's results of operations.
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The Company conducts its business operation in the PRC through its
PRC Operating Entity by way of the New Contractual Arrangements,
but certain terms of the New Contractual Arrangements may not be

enforceable under PRC law.
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The WFOE was accredited as a software enterprise in January 2016
and therefore is entitled to an income tax exemption for two years
starting from the first profitable year and an income tax rate of 12.5%
after a 50% reduction for the subsequent three years. From 2021
onward, the WFOE will be subjected to an income tax rate of 25%,
which will be the same as the income tax rate applicable to the PRC
Operating Entity.
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The New Contractual Arrangements contain provisions to the effect
that the arbitral body may award remedies over the shares and/or
assets of the Company's PRC Operating Entity, injunctive relief and/
or assets of the Company's PRC Operating Entity. These agreements
also contain provisions to the effect that courts of competent
jurisdictions are empowered to grant interim remedies in support of
the arbitration pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal. Any party
is entitled to request the competent court to execute the arbitration
award when it comes into effect.
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Risk associated with the New Contractual Arrangements

BHENZHEHENER

Mitigation actions taken by the Company
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If the Company exercises the option to acquire equity ownership of the

PRC Operating Entity, the ownership transfer must be approved or filed

with PRC governmental authorities and is subject to taxation, which may

result in substantial costs.
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Pursuant to the New Contractual Arrangements, Daily Charge
Shenzhen (or its designee) has the exclusive right to purchase all or
any part of the equity interests in the Company's PRC Operating
Entity from the respective shareholders for the minimum price
permitted under the then applicable PRC laws. The equity interest
transfer is subject to the approval from or filings with Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC (the “MOFCOM"), Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of PRC (the “MIIT") and/or their local
competent branches. According to the exclusive option agreement,
the transfer price of the relevant equity interests shall be the minimum
purchase price permitted under PRC law and the New Registered
Shareholders have undertaken to return in full the consideration
received in relation to such transfer of equity interests to Daily
Charge Shenzhen. In addition, the equity interest transfer price may
be subject to review and tax adjustment by the relevant tax authority.
The shareholders of the Company's PRC Operating Entity will be
subject to PRC individual income tax on the difference between the
equity interest transfer price and the then current registered capital
of the Company's PRC Operating Entity. The shareholders of the
Company's PRC Operating Entity will pay, after deducting any such
tax, the remaining amount to Daily Charge Shenzhen under the New
Contractual Arrangements. The amount to be received by Daily
Charge Shenzhen may also be subject to enterprise income tax.
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For details of the risks associated with the New Contractual Arrangements, please
refer to the section headed “RISKS RELATING TO THE NEW CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS" in the Company's announcement dated 26 November 2021.

(b)

Continuing Connected Transactions — The Framework Agreement

On 14 December 2021, the Company and the Yinsheng Communication Company
Limited (a connected supplier of the Company) (the “Connected Supplier”)
entered into a framework agreement in relation to the purchase of the mobile
top-up credits and mobile data usage top-up credits (the “Products”) by the
Company and supply of the Products by the Connected Supplier (the “Framework
Agreement”). The annual caps in respect of the Framework Agreement for the
period from 26 October 2021 to 3| December 2021 and each of the two financial
years ending 3| December 2022 and 2023 are RMBI20 million, RMB700 million
and RMB864 million respectively. The independent shareholders of the Company
had approved the proposed annual caps for the period from 26 October 2021
to 31 December 2021 and each of the two financial years ending 31 December
2022 and 2023 in respect of the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the
Framework Agreement at the extraordinary general meeting held on |0 February

2022.

The Connected Supplier, being a company indirectly controlled by the sibling of Ms.
Lam Ching Wan who is the substantial shareholder of the Company, is a connected

person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcement dated 14 December 2021 and the circular dated

[4 January 2022 of the Company for details.
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The following table sets out the relevant annual cap and the actual transaction
amounts of continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021.

TREHARAEE_E-_—F+-A
S+—HIFEMBEBERSEBEE
BLRREBRHEHE -

For the period from 26 October 2021

Transactions to 3| December 2021
B-E--F+A-tREE
% R+ ZA=+-BHE
Actual Amount
Annual Cap for the period
FELR HEERSE
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®BTR) (AR%®TR)
Continuing Connected Transactions under ERBRE THHERER S 120,000 117532

The Framework Agreement

Pursuant to Rule 14A55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions under the Existing Contractual
Arrangements, New Contractual Arrangements and the Framework Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and confirmed that these continuing connected

transactions have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better;

(i) in accordance with the relevant arrangements/agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the

Shareholders as a whole; and

(iv)  are subject to internal control procedures established by the Company which are

sufficient and effective.
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The independent non-executive Directors have also confirmed that (i) the transactions
carried out during the year ended 31 December 2021 have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Existing Contractual Arrangements and
New Contractual Arrangement respectively have been operated so that the revenue
generated by the Company's Operating Entity has been substantially retained by Daily
Charge Shenzhen; (ii) no dividends or other distributions have been made by the
Company's PRC Operating Entity to the holders of its equity interests which are not
otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group; and (iii) apart from the
New Contractual Arrangements, there were no new contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between the Group and the PRC Operating Entity during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditor of the
Company to carry out procedures in relation to the Existing Contractual Arrangements,
the New Contractual Arrangements and the Framework Agreement in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company have provided

a letter to the Board confirming that:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors of the Company
to believe that the Existing Contractual Arrangements, the New Contractual
Arrangements and the Framework Agreement have not been approved by the
Board;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors of the Company
to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements under the Existing Contractual
Arrangements, the New Contractual Arrangements and the Framework Agreement

governing such transactions; and

(i) nothing has come to their attention that caused the auditors of the Company to
believe that dividends or other distributions have been made by Shenzhen NNK to

their equity interest holders.

(iv)  fortransactions involving the receipt of goods or services by the Group, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the

internal and pricing policies of the Group.
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(v)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transactions
set out above in relation to the Framework Agreement, nothing has come to their
attention that causes the auditors of the Company to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 4 December 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of business
are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Other than those
transactions disclosed under the section headed “Connected Transactions” above, none
of them constitutes a connected transaction required for disclosure under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions mentioned in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements are not continuing connected transactions which are subject to annual
reporting requirements under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules, hence there is no
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules for such

transactions.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

As a specialized online transaction service provider, the Group's business does not involve
in production-related air, water and land pollutions which are regulated by the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC. No hazardous waste was produced by the Group in its

course of business in year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group complies with the relevant laws and regulations in environmental protection
and impact on the environment has always been a major focus of the Group. The
conscientious use of resources and adoption of best practices across the Group's business
operation underlies its commitment to protect the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to
the employees. The Group encourages all employees to be eco-friendly and participate in
energy and resources saving, such as encouraging duplex printing and reuse of single-sided
printed papers, saving water and electricity to reduce energy consumption. The Group will
continuously make efforts to put emphasis on environmental protection and sustainable

development.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group persists in maintaining good corporate governance and operating in
compliance with the laws and integrity through abidance by relevant laws and regulations,
industry regulations and business ethics. For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Group had not been and were not a party to any
material legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings, and the Group was not aware of any
pending or threatened legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings against the Group or
any of the Directors which could have a material adverse effect on the Group's operations

or financial condition.

Workplace Quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the basis
of personal characteristics. The Group has employee handbooks outlining terms and
conditions of employment, expectations for employees’ conduct and behavior, employees’
rights and benefits. The Group also establishes and implements policies that promote a

harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise and regards
human resources as its corporate wealth. The Group provides on-the-job training and
development opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression. Through
different trainings, staff's professional knowledge in corporate operations, occupational and
management skills are enhanced. The Group has also organized wide range of activities for
employees, such as outings, professional skills sharing class and New Year celebration to

promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

Health and Safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment.
Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. The Group prioritizes the health and well-being of staff.
In order to provide employees with adequate medical coverage, staff are entitled to free

medical check-ups, in addition to medical insurance required by laws.
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Training and Development

The Group is committed to the professional and personal development and growth of all
employees and considers training and development a continual process. Training courses
are provided to help employees develop and maintain consistency, proficiency and
professionalism. Structured training programs including courses, seminars and workshops
are offered to staff at all levels with the objective of grooming and unleashing their full
potential, organizational development and facilitating team synergies. Employees are
encouraged to take advantage of these programs to equip themselves with the skills and

knowledge for expanded career opportunities within the Group.

Commitment to Quality

The Group has made relentless efforts in delivering premium customer experience
with superior mobile top-up services. The staff have an acute judgment on market and
customers’ needs. Therefore, customer requests are promptly satisfied and steered
through establishing various channels to foster two-way communication. With a proactive
approach on continuous improvement in customer experience, the Board believes that

the Group can acquire competitive advantages in its business operation.

Management of Supply Chain

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria in selecting suppliers, and has
established a supplier evaluation system in terms of price, quality, cost, delivery and
after-sales service. The Group will carry out long-term quality monitoring and conduct
regular reviews on all suppliers as well as causal examination on different suppliers to

ensure quality supplies and services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance and
has complied with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Principal
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 23 to 46 contained in this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Articles provides that every director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
director of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which

judgment is given in his favour, or in which he or she is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs associated with

defending any proceeding which may be brought against the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing Shareholders.

BANK LOANS
Al the bank loans of the Group are repayable on demand or within one year. Details
of the bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 24 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

DONATION
The Group did not make any donation during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020
Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the Scheme of the Company as set out in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 3|

December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 31 December 2021.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhao Jinlin, being an independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as
an independent director of Shenzhen Inovance Technology Co,, Ltd. (RIITTEE) I iy
BOBRA
with effect from 24 May 2021, and an independent director of Shahe Industrial Co,, Ltd.

AJ), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300124),

(A EERMABRAT, a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000014), with effect from 22 April 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, there has been no change
to the information of the Directors and chief executives which is required to be disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holding of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in

relation to the shares of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal control and financial reporting matter,
including the review of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3|
December 2021 have been audited by the Company's external auditors, Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the past five financial

years is set out on page |96 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant events that may affect the business operation and/or the

financial position of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2021.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company's Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 7 January
2016 and the Company raised net proceeds (after the exercise of the over-allotment
option and after deducting the underwriting fees, commissions and other expenses
payable by the Company in connection with the global offering of the Company) of
approximately HK$52.0 million. The utilisation of the net proceeds was in accordance
with the proposed allocation as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of

Proceeds” in the Prospectus,

As at 31 December 2020, the unutilised amount of the net proceeds was approximately
HK$7.8 million in which the intended use was related to the potential acquisitions of
businesses and assets that are complementary to the Group's business and operations, or
forming strategic alliance with value chain partners. During the vear ended 3| December
2021, the Group has not utilised such net proceeds. As the Group had not identified,
committed to or entered into negotiations with any acquisition targets or value chain

partners, the Group has no specific expected timeframe for fully utilising such proceeds.

The unutilised portion of the net proceeds were deposited in reputable banks in Hong

Kong.
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SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

There has been no change of the Independent Auditor in the past three years.
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2021 have

been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which will retire, and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the

Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
Huang Junmou

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

To the shareholders of NNK Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NNK Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages |19 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RVR T

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

RESNEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most MARETEEEBREATHNEENE 245
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. HWARHBGEEMERERNEBIRAEENS
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial Ig o IS ETF R A ARITE T BESEE VSR

=z

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a ZMEESRRETRERN  ATTeHE

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HREITER

Revenue recognition on mobile top-up service

F A B (B IR Woas AR

During the year, the majority of the Group's revenue was
contributed from the top-up service. We identified the
revenue recognition on mobile top-up service as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements. The revenue was approximately
RMB90 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
FR - BEEERBHWRKBFETERS - £17
RARTHREERERBEEERSERETFE R
AAEBGRAMBHREAMEEREN -BE-T—_—
FHT_A=1T—HALFENRENRARKEIOES

I °

Once a top-up request from an individual mobile was
placed, the request would be automatically transferred
from the channels of customer to the 007ka Top-up
Platform (the “System").
ERIFH—BE T EREREFR  FREREFFPRE
BEERE007kEERETFA ([FE4])

All the top-up transactions were generated and recorded

in the System automatically.

PR A ER PN RGN A BER R -
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PRI

LERRHEEFOER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A TETEEBRENZTENIN

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition included:

AITA B FER AR FF 818

i) Evaluating the effectiveness of internal controls over the
revenue recognition process in respect of top-up service and
the System;

) HEEBERERE KRG TR BIZ A R ERE S B IETT
S

i) Confirming with the major channels of customer of the Group
for the transaction amounts of top-up service;

i) HEERERERZERE EREIEFFPRBETHE

o

i) Involving our internal information technology specialists in
testing the validity and accuracy of the sales orders received
by the Group recognised in the System and its authentication
process on security validation check; and

i FRATAREERMERARRRAERN BRER
B HE R EMA W R BRI A R L 2R ERERRE
Bz R

iv)  Involving our internal information technology specialists to
perform various data analysis on the transaction pattem.

v) FERATARBEERMERYRZRAETZHEED
1 -



Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic altermative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

By RBESRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RVR T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

0 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.

By RBESRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RVR T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is

Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GREsEREMEEHKRER

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

2021 2020
—B--% ZTTF

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

i ARMTRE AR®TL
Revenue Wi 6 90,622 81,742
Less: Tax surcharge s S (288) (513)
Cost of revenue W Es A AR (14,783) (18228)
Gross profit E7 75,551 63,001
Other income and expenses H WA KR 8 8,654 7,520
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRHERX (9,944) (6,338)
Administrative expenses THRAX (31,178) (25,665)
Research and development expenses MEFS (8,589) (7,075)
Finance costs BB AR 9 (2,457) (1224)
Profit before tax R 10 32,037 30219
Income tax expense FrEtiAx I (5,559) (6)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year AREER A F AN &

attributable to owners of the Company PH AR 26,478 30213

Eamings per share FREF 14
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(AR%S) 6.38 7.8

FEREIERAT 2021 F5 119



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BRI R

At 3] December 2021
RoE-—#+-A=+—H

2021 2020
B _—T_ITF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FieE AR¥TRE ARETR
Non-current Assets FREEE

Property, plant and equipment ER S 15 1,947 1,490
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 16 1,553 1,905
Rental deposits HE®ZS 262 185
Deferred tax assets REFIEEE 25 — | 546
3,762 5,126

Current Assets REEE
Inventories 75 |7 23,562 14,799
Trade receivables B 5 ERIE 18 168,514 188,976
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables HENFIE - Re REMEKRIE 19 151,332 38,183
Tax recoverables G e 152 2,307
Cash and cash equivalents REFFEEEY 20 32,520 103,579
376,080 347,844

Current Liabilities nEaE
Trade payables B HEMNIA 21 21,176 18474
Other payables Hith IR 22 61,981 64,336
Tax liabilities HMIEGE 15 5
Lease liabilities HERE 23 1,505 1,046
Bank borrowings RITERK 24 50,000 50,000
134,677 133,861
Net Current Assets MEEEFE 241,403 213983
Total Assets less Current Liabilities mEERLBEE 245,165 219,109
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 3/ December 2021
R-B-—#+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
B _—T_ITF
Notes RMB’000 RMB000

iz ARMFR AR®TRE

Non-current Liabilities FREEE

Lease liabilities HE&E 23 201 1,021

Deferred tax liabilities REHIEEE 25 9,280 8,882
9,48l 9903

Net Assets EEFE 235,684 209,206

Capital and Reserves EXR %

Share capital (LN 26 27,221 27221

Reserves s 208,463 181,985

Total Equity B 235,684 209,206

The consolidated financial statements on pages |19 to 195 were approved and authorised FI9E IS ENGEEHBRREAETERN
for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: RO CE-A=THRERRERE X
ATIALTRRRESE

Huang Junmou Fan Weiguo

BEH SCEE

Executive Director and Chairman Non-executive Director
HITEERTE HHITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERBREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
NG 2PN 1

Capital  Statutory Retained

Share Share
capital premium
BE  ROEE

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR

reserve reserves earnings Total
BXfilE  EERKE  RERA #st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR AR¥TR
(Note i) (Note ii)
o= =)

At | January 2020 R-_ZE_ZF—-H—H 27221 38,037 46,510 10340 56,885 178993
Profits and total comprehensive FERHENREERREE

income for the year — — — — 30213 30213
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-_TF+-A=1—-H 27221 38,037 46,510 10340 87,098 209,206
Profits and total comprehensive FRRAR2ZERGESE

income for the year — —

— — 26478 26478

At 31 December 202 R-E-—F+-A=+—H 27221 38,037 46510 10,340 113,576 235,684
Notes: B3t -
0) The amounts of capital reserve mainly include: (i) EXREBERTENSE

(i

122

(@

an amount of RMB25,510,000 representing the differences between the consideration
received on disposal of the entire equity interests in Shenzhen Shenzhou Tongfu
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Tongfu”) and Chengdu Shenzhou Tongfu
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Tongfu"), subsidiaries of the Company, to a related
company and Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, Mr. Li Xiangcheng, Mr. Xu Xinhua
and Mr. Huang Shaowu (collectively referred to as the “Relevant Shareholders”), and
the carrying amounts of the net assets of Shenzhou Tongfu and Chengdu Tongfu; and

an amount of RMB20,680,000 representing the difference between the nominal value
of the share capital issued by the Company and the registered capital of a subsidiary
acquired by the Company upon a corporate reorganisation for the purpose of listing
of the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
“Stock Exchange”).

As stipulated by the relevant laws in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory reserve fund. The minimum transfer to

statutory reserves is 10% of profit after tax of the PRC subsidiaries according to the PRC

subsidiaries’ statutory financial statements. No appropriation is required if the balance of the

statutory reserves has reached 50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The

statutory reserves can be used to make up losses or for conversion into capital.

NNK Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEREREBR

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

2021 2020
—B--% ZTTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBETR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEY
Profit before tax BRBE AT A 32,037 30219
Adjustments for: A
Finance costs MBERA 2,457 1224
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 1,385 1191
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - BENKSETE 866 803
Loss on written off/disposal of property, plant and equipment Wis HEME - BER
B EE1R 67 45
Interest income FEWA (1,014) (891)
Unrealised net exchange (loss) gain RERIHME (BEB) Wa F5E (289) 824
Recognition of (reversal of) impairment loss in respect of R () B S E0E
trade receivables REER (61) 34
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital LEESEHRILERENE 35,448 33,449
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (gm)m (8,763) 7209
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables g5 RYFIER D (3B) 20,523 (83,100)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables FARTROE © e RE i REURIAE I (113,149) (8,656)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables B o REMNFIBE M ORD) 2,702 (7,525)
(Decrease) increase in other payables H b ETRIE O ) 350 (2,345) 20,281
Cash used in operations KEREARSE (65,584) (38342)
Income tax paid ERATEH (1,460) (2316)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETBARSREE (67,044) (40,658)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FaN= IE%/)ILE'%:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—F+-A=1—HIFE

2021 2020
—2C-F —T°TH
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBETR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Withdrawal of structured deposits WEHAERE TR 1,021,120 1,572,900
Interest received TS 1,014 891
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment ﬁ’ﬂ%% B KRB PTS TR 7 —
Placement of structured deposits LEAEBIEFR (1,021,120) (1,572,900)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment E%Ei%% WS (1,397) (795)
Payment for rental deposits Y NHEEERE (77) =
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE (FiA) EREEH (453) 9%
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERATF A 100,000 50,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER (100,000) (20,000)
Interest paid BERFE (2,457) (1224)
Repayment of leases liabilities EEHEEE (1,394) (1,140)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE (FTA) MEREFH (3,851) 27,636
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RE LR EBMRFE (71,348) (12926)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January R—A—B8ReFREEEY 103,579 117,329
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INERE R BB 2 289 (824)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, RT-—RA=+t—B8HeRk
represented by bank balances and cash ReEEY  MRTESRKERSE 32,520 103,579
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

NNK Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company's registered office is located at PO
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY|-1104, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is 5/F, Building F5, TCL International E City, No.
1001 Zhongshan Yuan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is engaged in

providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

—REH

FEREEFRRA([F2F] R
HERESAMKLREREAERD
A ERONBIAEIRES - XD
A =B ALAPO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KYI-1104, Cayman
Islands * H 22 & ¥ it A BEUR
YT rg LA L BB 1001 SETCLEIRRE
IRFSIRS1E

ARBRBREEZERRR] « A7 R EH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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PR R I RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

2.

126

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on

or after | January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BAMBIMEENE 655 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

BRWBHEEREIN - BEGERE3N - BEUMBRELER
F7% - BERUBWELERF45RRBEHBRELEE 657 (EFIAX)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (the “Committee”) of the International Accounting Standards Board
issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include as “estimated
costs necessary to make the sale” when determining the net realisable value of

inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

NNK Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RBETTEBUBEREEL ([F

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

BBIBHRELERE 175
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BEBIBIRELERE3H (BATAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BB MG ERE 105 REB G LR
$285% (BRI )

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BERIBIHEERF 165% (BRI A)

Amendments to HKAS |

BBGHERIE 5 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS | and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BRI ERE  RREBUERELER
EBmER2R (BAIAX)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BB G ERIFESH (BRI A)
Amendments to HKAS 12
BBGERIE 125 (BATA)
Amendments to HKAS 16
BB GERIE 65 (BATA)
Amendments to HKAS 37
BB ERIE7H (BAIAR)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BB M B EER (BFIA)
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Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments®
Ripa 4 LB

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
ElEER N S

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®
REFRABENASEELECRANEELESTE

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
—ZT-—FRXA=1RZ{&Covid-I9HRAHEE TR
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°
BEESBEARDIIERBAREEZREEST (CZ-TF) NERIE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
EHEENORE

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

SEHERTER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction®
RE-RFELNEENAEERNELH R

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use?
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Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020?
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RETERUBBEEN(E
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) BEEHREER ) WER (&)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued) CEMAEERERNTTREBIES

PR ERER (F)
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2021. \ RZZEZ—FMA—BH2ERBRN

FEMEER o

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022. 2 R-ZE-—F—F—HyZERRN
FEHRAER

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023. 3 RZEZ=F—H—B2&RABN
FEMEAER

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. 4 R B sk 2 BRI E B 4
e

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other new and AR RIESFRIERAATE AR R

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial BT BB B RE LR A RAHIGA

statements in the foreseeable future. UGS HBRREREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The mobile top-up service provided by the Group is prohibited and restricted from
foreign investment in the PRC pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations.
The Group has adopted a series of contracts (the “Structured Contracts”) with
Shenzhen Niannianka Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen NNK") and its
equity holders to maintain and exercise the control over the operation of Shenzhen
NNK; and to obtain all of its entire economic benefits (the “VIE Arrangement”).

The Structured Contracts are irrevocable and enable the Group to:

J exercise effective financial and operational control over Shenzhen NNK;

J exercise equity holders' voting rights of Shenzhen NNK;

S receive substantially all economic returns generated by Shenzhen NNK in
consideration for the business support, technical and consulting services

provided by the Group;

J obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase the entire equity

interest in Shenzhen NINK from the Relevant Shareholders; and

J obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Shenzhen NNK from the
Relevant Shareholders as collateral security for all of Shenzhen NNK' due
to the Group and to secure performance of the Relevant Shareholders'

obligations under the Structured Contracts.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

130

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Company does not have any equity interest in Shenzhen NNK. However, as a
result of the Structured Contracts, the Company has power over Shenzhen NNK;
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with Shenzhen NNK and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over Shenzhen NNK and therefore
is considered to have control over Shenzhen NNK. Consequently, the Company
regards Shenzhen NNK as an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary and consolidated
the financial position and results of Shenzhen NNK in the consolidated financial

statements of the Group during both years.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was a change of equity holders
of Shenzhen NNK and a series of contracts entered by the Group, Shenzhen NNK
and the new equity holders of Shenzhen NNK to maintain the VIE Arrangement.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules") and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
of liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payments, leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16"), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2

Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

J Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

S has power over the investee;

S is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

S has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance

obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

0 the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

S the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the
Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or
to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (ie. the

Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before that

good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the
mobile top-up service by the PRC telecommunication companies. In this case,
the Group does not control the mobile top-up credits provided by the PRC
telecommunication companies before mobile top-up service is transferred to the
mobile subscribers. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of mobile top-up service income entitled from the mobile subscribers,
net of cost of mobile top-up credits sourced from the PRC telecommunication
companies or other vendors. Mobile top-up service income is recognised when the
PRC telecommunication companies completed the mobile top-up service for the

mobile subscribers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the

use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16 or arising from business combinations, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of various
staff quarters that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases

are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

J any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any

lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

S an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and

conditions of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its

estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered

as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease labilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

J fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease

incentives receivable;

S variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured

using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

J amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees,
. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to

exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the

Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion

and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4, EEBRHBR(E)
Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEEEREAHEA ()
Lease modifications HEmMEH
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if: WHBATER » XEBBHEERNEK

fER—REBNHEETARK -

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use . Z TSN MBI N — 1B % B0

one or more underlying assets; and BEMNBMENTHESE &

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate . FRASHRE  ENNESERSRE
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate EREAHENEEER - NERRBIET
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the BHANERBRE ERERETHER
particular contract. HE AR

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group MAREA—EEBHEARNHEEER

remeasures the lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable, based on the msE @ REBERNEBERBRENE

lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a HMEIE TR R AR BRI ERN R

revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification. MEBERHENERENTEHEEE

(R EMRLEERS) -

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making ANEBRBH RGBT HEEELETHE
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified . UHAEABETET:TE - B
contract contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non- TIERE B ERERD AR — (s %
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract BZEINEA S IEHER DT K’Elﬁ
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease BHEER Y BB ERRIEHE

component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. DEVBREER - BRERENTHRK

ENERESEEERD -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities which is not eligible for

capitalisation is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits scheme which is classified as
defined contribution plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to

the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and

salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit/loss before tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to the relevant assets and
related liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on the relevant
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities results in

net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to

income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property

assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted

for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant cash generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group

of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a weighted average cost method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to

make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS |15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS
I5"). Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial

assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

J the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to

collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

S the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS

3 Business Combinations applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting

period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (‘ECL")
model on financial assets (including trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances), which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit

risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (*12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the industry default rates quoted by a credit agent, adjusted
for any factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the

forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and/or

collectively with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
I2m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

J significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit spread and the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;

0 existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

J an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor;
0 an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,

economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying

significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For intemal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the

Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4, EEBRHBR(E)
Financial instruments (continued) $WMIA(HE)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 B BB R B E 95 A B TS
(continued) T HIE BB ERE (&)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EERETREE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that CRIBEN—BRZAENEN

have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial (HZLREENGARKBE SR

asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes EBKTNTE) BERHE S

observable data about the following events: ERE- - cREELRBEERE

NEBEBREEE TSR
ZHE
«  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower; « BOASIBRANEKRY
;
+  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event; « ERAH(WBERNFH
SBEREN)

+  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons - BRANERABEH@EE
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the N B R B A8 B A 4938
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise BmmEERAREERA
consider; or ARGE BT &

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or . R ONCEEACPN T
other financial reorganisation. HipfA =R

152 NNK Group Limited Annual Report 202



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficutty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that

is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered on a collective
basis taking into consideration internal credit rating information and forward

looking information.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

EESHBR(A)

SRIA(HF)

THEE (&)

BB B ERE O F AR EFE
THy % BEERE (&)

)

)

M SHER R
EEMBTETFIRERBEY
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R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the following

characteristics when formulating the grouping:

0 Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

0 External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the

constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income s calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case

interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received

and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions

of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and bank borrowings are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

EESHBR(A)

SRIA(HF)

THEE (&)

RIFEREF R E
AEEEREEERTRERENEL
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for the
&

196

PR R I RE

year ended 3/ December 202/

FoEC—F =t —HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note
4, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the critical judgement that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group assesses its business relationships with users of the mobile top-up
service and suppliers of mobile top-up credits and determines that the Group is
providing the mobile top-up service by facilitating transactions between the PRC
telecommunication companies and mobile subscribers, and accordingly reports

revenue derived from such services on net basis.

In determining whether the revenue from mobile top-up service shall be recorded
on net basis or gross basis, the Group has made reference to indicators and
requirements stated in HKFRS 15. Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or an agent requires judgment and consideration of all relevant facts and
circumstances, and the Group considers itself as having an agency relationship with
the PRC telecommunication companies by assessing features that are arising from

its operation and contractual agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

2021 2020
—B--F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTR AR®TT

Type of service AR5 % Bl

Mobile top-up service FHRFEBRERE 90,255 80,967

Mobile data usage top-up service FRRERERS 282 642

Others HAtr 85 133
90,622 81,742

The Group provides the mobile top-up and mobile data usage top-up service
by facilitating transactions between the PRC telecommunication companies and
mobile subscribers, through the channels of financial institutions and other channels.
Accordingly, the Group recognises revenue derived from such services on a net

basis.

Mobile top-up service income is entitled from the mobile subscribers, net of cost
of mobile top-up credits sourced from the PRC telecommunication companies or

other vendors.

Mobile top-up service income is recognised when the PRC telecommunication
companies completed the mobile top-up service for the mobile subscribers, being
at the point of time when the mobile subscribers have the ability to direct the use

of the service and obtain the benefit of the service.

AEERBEREEREREMRER
EFREERREFHRAP LHNRS
Mg FRERERERTRAETER
% o At - REBEFREERERKE
SR M o

FREERERBBATIRE FHA
B kAT EEEARSEMEER
BEFTHASTETRNAA -

FRABRERBRARTEEELA
RTFBAF KT H AR TERSE
(BN # F P Re 4 te e AR 76 A i I e AR
HERHFE) R -

FEREEBRAT 2021 F3H 157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

158

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors and the chief operating decision makers (the
“CODMs") in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their

performance.

The CODMs review the Group's financial performance as a whole, which is
generated from the provision of mobile top-up service, mobile data usage top-
up service and other top-up service by the Group to customers and determined
in accordance with the Group's accounting policies, for performance assessment.

Therefore, no separate segment information is prepared by the Group.

Geographical information
All of the Group's revenue is derived from customers in the PRC and assets are
principally located in the PRC. Therefore, no geographical segment information is

presented.
Information about major customers

There was no revenue from individual customer of the Group contributing over

|0% of the total revenue of the Group during both vears.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES 8. HMKWARREX
2021 2020
B —T-TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥FR AR®TR

Interest income HEKA
— from structured deposits (Note i) — KRB BT (D 603 546
— from bank deposits — REBRITER 411 345
Government subsidy (Note ii) BT RE (BREin) 694 2826
(Recognition of) reversal of impairment loss in respect of L& ZFEM A () B LA

trade receivables REER 6l (34)
Net foreign exchange loss INEEIEH R (321) (729)
Loss on written off/disposal of property, plant s HEME - BERSENER

and equipment (67) (45)
Income on additional credit for the input value added tax ~ #EIRIE{ET ([IEEH ) REEIME G

("VAT") (Note i) YA (&) 7,145 4944
Others Hith 128 (333)

8,654 7,520
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

8.  OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 8. HMWARMEX (&)

Notes: B sE -

()  During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group entered into iy BEZZE-Z-—FR-FT-FTFF+-A
principal and return unprotected-structured deposits with banks in the PRC that were =+—RIEE A"EE@mTRZ
denominated in RMB and without fixed maturity period. Interest of the structured FRIRITEE AL M RIFRER AE M
deposits varied depending on the performance and retum of underlying investments FREAREANE  EETEIHH
managed by the banks. The structured deposits were classified as financial assets at ) o BTN SR FRITA
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. All the structured deposits were ERABRENRERLRME © &
purchased and redeemed during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. BUEEZANIS RSB AR AT

Eff \BEafemEE - MALERE
HEIOREBE SR "
ZFE+-A=+—HIFEBERE
g o

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the relevant government authority iy ®WEZZ=Z—F+ZA=+—H8Lt
granted one-off subsidy to the Group amounting to RMB694,000 (2020: FE BERBRNERMAESEITE
RMB2,826,000) in relation to the Group’s industry related funding scheme. The HEAMNENFERAEEREAR
government subsidy was recognised in the profit or loss in the year in which they B694,000T (ZE 22 F : AR
became receivable. 2,826,0007T) B — R EHEL o BT

BE RO 8 B AT R ER B 6 [ M PN B 2R B
R e

(i)~ On 21 March 2019, the PRC tax authority has published 2019 Bulletin 39 with iy RZZT—NEFE=ZA=1+—H ' PBEH
effective period from | April 2019 to 31 December 2021 which states that additional BREAEHR S —NEF9RAE
10% of input VAT would be granted to the qualified general VAT payer to offset (ERHE - NFNA—HZ=
VAT payables. E-—F+ZA=+—H) EH#

A& BR—RIBEBAB AR TR
|0% B ETEIBET - AR SHERTIE1E
e
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIERAE
2021 2020
B —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETRT
Interest on bank borrowings RITRETAE 2,333 1,077
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBENE 124 147
2,457 1,224

160

NNK Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRBLATEF
2021 2020
—B--§ —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETRT
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: BRETRD R A TSR T RIBERSF T -
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) EEM< (FHsE12) 2,949 3,123
Salaries and other benefits, excluding those of directors ~ T& R EMEHM (TEBEEEM) 19,463 14,523
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RAKEMAEIHT (T BIEESH)
excluding those of directors 2,695 819
Total staff costs BIRAHE 25,107 18,465
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BERSETE 866 803
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 1,385 1191
Auditor's remuneration A Gl Ea
— Audit services — B R 1,966 1,886
— Non-audit services — IR 456 422
INCOME TAX EXPENSE . PR
2021 2020
B —T-ITF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARETT
Current tax: BNEARLIE -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — REIRERAEH 2,967 6
— PRC Withholding Tax — BRI 648 —
Deferred tax (Note 25) RIERE (FifEE25) 1,944 —
5,559 6

FEREEBRDA 2021 F#
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

162

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as no assessable profit was generated in Hong Kong for both

years.

The PRC
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulations of the PRC EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

In January 2016, Daily Charge Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“Daily Charge SZ"),
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise of the Company, was accredited as a software
enterprise by the Shenzhen Software Industry Association, and therefore could
enjoy an income tax exemption for two years starting from its first profit-making
year and a 50% tax reduction to an income tax rate of 12.5% for the subsequent
three years. For the year ended 31 December 2020, Daily Charge SZ's assessable

profit was absorbed by unrecognised tax loss in prior years.

As a small-size and low-profit enterprise under the PRC EIT Law, Shenzhen Qianhai
Yixing Network Technology Co,, Ltd* (RIIFTE = BAX R BRAR), a
PRC subsidiary of the Company, was entitled to 20% preferential tax rate and only
25% of the taxable profits is subject to the PRC EIT Law, with effective period from
| January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

* English name is for identification purpose only
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
The PRC (continued)

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F- 41 H=1—HIFE

FRiSBiAxX (&)

HE (&)
FRARBEAX AR EREBERE
2 ERAKRT ORI ADERN - 0

2021 2020

—B--F CZT-THF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®ETT

Profit before tax BRBEAT AR 32,037 30219

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% RERARE 2% T ENTIE 8,009 7,555

Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax purpose OBIE Rz 0knh S -7 3,686 2,064

Tax benefits (Note i) B ER (L) (2,445) (1327)
Tax effect of tax relief or concessionary tax PRIBEN R — KA BB AT

rate granted to a PRC subsidiary EREENENNETE (133) 22)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised @J)ﬂi@&?ﬁﬁ@ wﬁﬁilﬁ}gﬂﬁ (4,206) (8,264)
Withholding tax on distributed profits of FEFE A Pyl 1)

a PRC subsidiary (Note ii) FAHIB (Wfﬁfii) 648 o
Income tax expense for the year FARMBEHRX 5,559 6
Notes: PiEE
(i) Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC, additional 75% of the () BEPBRBEERGREER 88

qualified research and development costs are allowed to claim as PRC income tax MEHTEE R AN HRE SN 7 5% ] B 55 70 B B

credits. Such PRC income tax credits are accounted for deduction from current BRER - ZZhEMER KRN

income tax expenses when relevant conditions are fulfilled. B G A B A BRTIVE BN BR TS A BE
R

(i) Under the PRC EIT Law, 10% withholding income tax is generally imposed on iy WERECEMSRE  FEKLH

dividends relating to any profits earned commencing from 2008 by enterprises PER-_BENER 2 BEREHFE

established in the PRC to foreign investors. For the year ended 31 December

2021, the Group has applied 10% tax rate for dividends declared by a subsidiary

incorporated in the PRC.

FEREEBRDA 2021 F#
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 2. BEE FETBRAERESNH

&
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to BIEE A _EHR A& A THEG AT iR
the applicable Listing Rules and the CO, is as follows: FRESERTETHAENHMOT :
Salaries Retirement

and other  benefit scheme

Fees allowances  contributions Total
TER RINER

ue Hit2R SRR &t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETRT AR®TR ARETR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B®ZE—Z=-—F+=H

=t—HLEFE
Executive directors; WITEE:
Mr. Huang Junmou (Note i) ERREAE (5T 124 1,010 56 1,190
Mr. Yang Hua (Note ii) B (PiEi) 104 833 67 1,004
Non-executive directors: FEHITES -
Mr. Fan Weiguo (Note i) SR A (PN EE) 4] — — 4
Mr. Yu Zida FESLE 124 — — 124
Mr. Li Xiangcheng (Note iii TSR (BT 114 — — 114
Mr. Xu Xinhua (Note i FrETEE ST A (PN AR 104 — = 104
Independent non-executive directors BAEMITES
Mr. Lin Zhangxi R 124 — — 124
Mr. Qian Haomin BRRELE 124 — — 124
Ms. Zhao Jinlin HEEMZ T 124 = = 124

983 [,843 123 2,949
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

2. EE - FETHAERESNH

(CONTINUED) € (&)
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
I8k RAER
e Hit 2Rt AT G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-T-_ZTE+-A
=t+—HIEFE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Huang Junmou (Note i) EfRFEEE (M) 133 1010 12 1,155
Mr. Yang Hua (Note i) WBEL A (M EEi) 133 1,000 37 1170
Non-executive directors: FHTES -
Mr. Yu Zida T FESAE 133 — — 133
Mr. Li Xiangcheng (Note ii ==k S A (B EEin) 133 — — 133
Mr. Xu Xinhua (Note i ArETEE ST A (PN EE) 133 — = 133
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Lin Zhangxi WEHKE 133 — — 133
Mr. Qian Haomin BESLL 133 — — 133
Ms. Zhao Jinlin HEML T 133 = = 133
1,064 2010 49 3,123
Notes: PEE :
(i) Mr. Huang Junmou also serves as the chief executive of the Company. His () EEREETEERRREERT

emoluments include service rendered as chief executive.

(i) Mr. Yang Hua was resigned as an executive director and the Chief Executive Officer,

Mr. Xu Xinhua was resigned as a non-executive director and Mr. Fan Weiguo was

appointed as a non-executive director on 28 October 2021.

(i) Mr. Li Xiangcheng was resigned as a non-executive director on 3 December 2021.

(il
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—F+-A=1—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 12.
(CONTINUED)
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included two
(2020: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020: three) highest paid

employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

EE FETBRAERESHM
% (&)
AEBERNFRARZRSHNES BER
Z2(ZE-2F WMB)EF HFM
AR LEX - URRARREFTRE
ETBRABMBRT =R (ZT_FF

follows: =R) B MEERFRNEFS
o :
2021 2020
—B--F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT
Salaries and allowances T& N2 1,898 2,596
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIETEIE 175 94
2,073 2,690

The number of the highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

WIRARREZRTBITRABNR

executive of the Company is as belows: SEEE AZWT :
2021 2020
—8--f —T-%H
No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAHY BE AR
— Nil to HK$1,000,000 —Z £ 1,000,000/ 7T 3 I
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 — 1,000,001 T ZE 1,500,000/ 7T = 2

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors, chief executive of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors and the chief executive of the Company has waived any

emoluments during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F- 41 H=1—HIFE

DIVIDENDS 3. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the Company ARAHER T - —FMERRKRR
during 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting KB EZIK ?’*H - BREHAAREE
period (2020: nil). B FIRE IR (::5 —TFE )
EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the ARAEE NELEBRERBMTHER
Company is based on the following data: ATEURFE
2021 2020
—RC-% —T-%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Earnings for the purpose of basic eamings per share: HEREARMMN = NEAH :
— profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company — AN RI#EA A JE(L & A A 26,478 30,213
Number of shares
BHEE
2021 2020
—B--% ZTTF
'000 ‘000
T8’ Fhx
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for HRERERAREETRBIMEH
the purpose of basic and diluted eamings per share TR T I98 415,000 415,000

No diluted earmings per share is presented for both years as there was no potential

ordinary share in issue.

AT EBEERITERR - FItmE
FEAREHEREERN -
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

I15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

I5. % - MEKRE

Computer
Leasehold Motor and office
improvement vehicles equipment Total
HE STEER
YL AE WARE At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥Trn AR¥TR AR%ETx
COST R AR
At | January 2020 R-E-ZTF—F—H 443 2362 1,860 14,665
Additions NE 66 = 729 795
Write off gz — — (94) (94)
At 31 December 2020 R_E-_ZF+-_A=+—H 509 2362 12,495 15,366
Additions RE — — 1,397 1397
Disposals HeE — (595) (537) (1,132)
At 31 December 2021 R_E-_—%+-A=+—H 509 1,767 13,355 15,631
DEPRECIATION e
At | January 2020 R-ZE-ZT&—F—H 216 ,583 11323 13,122
Provided for the year FREE 76 376 351 803
Eliminated on write off AU B ST 85 — - 49) (49)
At 31 December 2020 NZZE-ZF+-_A=+—H 292 1959 11,625 13,876
Provided for the year FRERE 87 284 495 866
Eliminated on write off PR SHF 18 — (565) (493) (1,058)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-F=+—H 379 1,678 11,627 13,684
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2021 R_E-_—F+-_A=+—H 130 89 1,728 1,947
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZTE+-A=+—H 217 403 870 1,490
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15. Y% BERRE (&)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- Lz - BEREEERE DR E R
line basis over the useful lives as follows: FHNREGEEETNE -
Leasehold improvement Shorter of respective lease term or 5 years
MEMRKE ARSI E UABREERE)
Motor vehicles 5 years
HEE 5%
Computer and office equipment 3 to 5 years
ECY SN 3ES5F
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS l6. EREEE
Land and
buildings
in the PRC
FEIRY it
rEF
RMB’000
AR®TR
At | January 2020 RZZ-TF—H—H 2,950
Addition NE 146
Depreciation provided for the year FAMERE (1,191)
At 31 December 2020 and | January 2021 RIZZEF+_A=1+—HK
—Z-—-%¥—-A—H 1,905
Addition NE 1,033
Depreciation provided for the year FAMERE (1,385)
At 3| December 202 | R_E_—%+-A=+—H 1,553
For both years, the Group leases land and buildings for its operations. Lease NREEE  AEBHETHNRIEFH
contracts are entered into for fixed term of | year to 4 years. Lease terms are {EBE - HEANIR | ER4FEHE T H
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. The FRETS o M EKRTIREREERER - B
total cash outflows for leases during the year amounted to RMBI,518,000 (2020: BENRMNER MR - FAFHERIR
RMBI,287,000). SREBERAR | 5180007 (=5

—ZF : AR¥,287,0007T) °
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—F+-A=1—HIFE

17. INVENTORIES 7. &8

2021 2020
—E--F T -TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETR
Pre-paid mobile top-up credits BNFHREERESRE 23,562 14,799

I18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. EZEWRIE
2021 2020
—B--F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARETT
Trade receivables B F W IR 168,599 189,122
Less: allowance of credit losses B EEEERE (85) (146)
168,514 188,976

Trade receivables mainly represent receivables from financial institutions in relation
to the mobile top-up service which the settlement period is normally within | day
from transaction date. Due to deepening cooperation with major PRC banks for
their promotion activities, the Group has granted credit period of 30 to 45 days
for those trade receivables based on the invoice date. For certain channels of
customers, the credit period was about 30 to 60 days granted by the Group based

on the invoice date. The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

170 NNK Group Limited Annual Report 202

BORKTIETEERERFHEERE
REMERMEERTRRIE  SEHE
FRXHAEIRA - AREFEPEH

BT ERIHEB MRS 1E - NEER
ZEEFRIFER TENEZH0E
SROERY - HRNETEFRE &
SEETERNEZHL0E0XRNER
H - AEE W ERAZFEAFTEEME
Y o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit
losses presented based on the date of service provided and revenue recognised, at

the end of each reporting period:

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

B 5 EWE ()

TIRRERE PRRBFER RSB
RS 250 E 5 BNRIE
(MR EEBRRRE) MERE D -

2021 2020

B C—T-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETR

0 to 30 days 0E230K 166,896 186,993
31 to 60 days 3IIE60K 732 [,105
Over 60 days 60 R £ 886 878
168,514 188,976

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's trade receivables balance were
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,788,000 (2020: RMB434,000)

which are past due as at the reporting date.

Based on the Group's assessment of historical credit loss experience of these
debtors, including all available forward-looking information and expected
settlements, the Group does not consider default has occurred despite the
contractual payments are overdue more than 90 days due to these customers are
mainly reputable banks with strong financial positions. However, the Group has
provided in full for trade receivables overdue more than 180 days because based
on historical experience, such receivables are generally not recoverable, unless the

Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in Note 28.

RZZE-_—F+ZA=+—H" 'R
BERHCANNREEAERAR
#) 788,000 (ZE-TF : AR¥E
434,0007T) WEUERTETAREEE 5
FEW IR 4%

ERASEHZEEHEABTERBLR
LB - BEMEASHATEEE
HEEHEERR AEERREES
NI HEBEIORAL - BRRZSEE
FXEREERREUMBGHAABERL
RERTT - MASRAERY - A - AR
BEBTLR BEBRISOKNES
FEMHRIE—REENE - AKE S
HiHiA 180K E H W FIBIEL 28
B RIAEEZEEEETBEEER
FIAT & - BlfERR

BHE 5 EUKE R ER & F BN
728 °
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=)

PR R I RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—F+-A=1—HIFE

19.

20.

21.

172

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. BNFE - BEREMGERK
2021 2020
—R--F —T-%H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARBTR
Prepayments for mobile top-up credit (Note) FREBRESERMNFE (M) 148,362 35313
VAT recoverable AT B E R 1,593 1914
Other prepayments and deposits and other receivables  ELfh TR FRIB K& & F H A UK 1,377 956
151,332 38,183
Note: Included in the amount as at 3| December 2021 is the prepayments to a related e AT =—F+=-A=+—H
party amounting to RMB21,440,000. Details of the relevant transactions are set out in MeBERENBE T RBARE
note 29. 21,440,0007C MR 5 B M
29
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERFSEEY
The Group's cash and cash equivalents carry interests at prevailing market rates RZBE-_—F+-A=+—H  r5&E
which range from 0.01% to 2.60% (2020: 0.01% to 2.60%) per annum as at 3! MRERREEEBMENTNEF0.01%
December 2021. F260%(ZZZFF : 0.01%F260%)
E"jiﬁ,fjﬁiﬁﬁljﬁ—‘ﬁ_/%\ °
TRADE PAYABLES 21, BHEMAEER

The Group is normally granted credit terms of about 90 days. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the

credit timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the date of

service provided, at the end of respective reporting periods:

AEERREERNIORNERE - K%
BT BRERERECR - NERAA
ERNRENGBLERHR -

AN RREREHRRBRERENE
HENNE SR AFRNRE D -

2021 2020

—B--F —T-TH

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETRT

0 to 90 days 0290K 13,773 6,460
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 1,137 1,018
181 to 360 days 181 £360K 6,266 10,996
21,176 18,474
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

22.

23.

OTHER PAYABLES 22. HttfEARIE
2021 2020
B —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Receipts in advance AW FIA 52,702 55,785
Accrued salaries fEETE & 4,152 4231
Other tax payables Hip eS8 261 207
Payable for audit fee JERETER 954 949
Others HAh, 3912 3,164
61,981 64,336
LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HESE
2021 2020
B —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETL
Lease liabilities payable: EAEEEE:
Within one year —FRA 1,505 1,046
Within a period of more than one year but not more than AHi—F LA L - (B NEBBEME
two vears 201 1,021
1,706 2,067
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months shown — J& : JI/ERENEERR 12E AR
under current liabilities BIHAAE E R FIE (1,505) (1,046)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under  FI{EIERBN B BRI 1218 A 1%
non-current liabilities PIEEE B FIA 201 1,021

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 5.2% (2020: 5.9%).

AR EaEMIEEERFIEA52%

(ZZ2=ZF :59%) °
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

24. BANK BORROWINGS 24. |RITER
2021 2020
B —T-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥FR AR®TR

Unsecured, fixed interest rate of 5.5% (2020: 5.2%) BIRH - EE F M ES5%
per annum and repayable within one year (Z2=FTF : 52%) TR—FREE 50,000 50,000
25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25, REBIA
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting AT RRER B3 B 0 R IEBIRA
purposes: B
2021 2020
—B--§ —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBTR
Deferred tax assets EIENIAEE — (1,546)
Deferred tax liabilities EREHRBAE 9,280 8,882
9,280 7336
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 25. BEEBIE (&)
The following are the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements AT RN KB 1T 5 2 PR r IR T
thereon during the current and prior years: BBaE (BE) REZE :
Taxable
management

Allowance fee income

of credit of Daily
losses Charge SZ Tax losses Total

RRFERY

=& R FEERBL
BERE EEBEHRA BIAER Ast

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

(Note)
(BH=E)
At | January 2020 R-ZZT-_ZTF—H—H (600) 7936 — 7,336
Charge (credit) for the year FARX (E2) 600 1,344 (1,944) —
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE_TF+_A=+—H — 9,280 (1944) 7336
Charge (credit) for the year FRRAX (EE) — — 1,944 1,944
At 31 December 202 R-_F-_—4F+-A=1+—H — 9,280 — 9,280
Note: Amount represented the tax effect of RMB37,120,000 management fee to pay by fiat - ZeRABZE_E—RF+-_A=1
Shenzhen NINK and to receive by Daily Charge SZ for the year ended 3| December —BIEEE REATEZNZERL
2015 under the VIE Arrangement. B R EFERES N RRRIARI
FEMER R B IR & AR ™ 37,120,0007T
MM E -
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PR R I RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F-—F+-A=1—HIFE

25.

26.

176

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 25. BEEBIE (&)
As at 3|1 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of RMB 14,000 RIZE_—F+-A=1t—H K5E
(2020: RMB16,825,000). Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of BRBABEBEARE 14,0007t (=
RMB7,776,000 of such losses as at 31 December 2020 and no deferred tax T-TF : AR¥16,8250007T) e A=
asset has been recognised in respect of remaining RMB9,049,000 due to the ZEFE+A=1—8  BZEBEA
unpredictability of future profit streams. R#7776 000 THERBEHRBEE © A
RAREFFIRO A TR - I Ept
BT AR 9,049,000 THERIEIET IR B
Eo
Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in BEPBECEMEIE  BZTTNF
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. —H—Bie  SHhEMERRREUE
As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of taxable temporary differences MEREREGBWTEINH - RZFTZ
associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax —F+ZA=+—8 " BRBARX
liabilities have not been recognised amounted to RMB203,486,000 (2020: DIKBRNERNER N EREHETE
RMB175,584,000). No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of (TEAEBRAELEHRERRE) RAR
these temporary differences because the Group is able to control the timing of the #203,486,0007C (ZZE T4 : ARK
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will 175,584,0007T) © B3N 5 B A% #9422
not be reversed in the foreseeable future. BOEREENERE  BZSEE
PERAERARER - U ERZE
B ZRERREHBEALE o
SHARE CAPITAL 26. BA
Issued and fully
Number of Number of paid share capital
authorised issued ERTRARKRE
shares shares Us$ RMB'000
EERGEHE ERTROHE Zn AR®TR
Asat | January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZZE-TF—H—H
| January 2021 and 31 December 2021 “ECEFETA=T—H-
“EFo-F-A-8EK
“F-—%t-A=1-H
~ Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each — BiR00I ETTHYL FAR 2,000000000 415,000,000 4,150,000 27221
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27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to owners through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes bank
borrowings and lease liabilities disclosed in notes 23 and 24 respectively, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital, retained earmings and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from time to time.
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital and will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of

dividends, the issue of new shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

27.

28.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

EXABEE
AEEEREE S RRAREE B
HABEEE TR EE - ANERE
BT 2 MR TET AlA
ASDEADS - AEEHBEERR
R -

ARENEARBRERFRANK - 2
1B RIRB 23 R 24P B BRI TE K
FHERE MBERE RREFEDN
RADRRA AEIG#ES (BHEEET
B~ RE BRI R EffEE) o

REBERB IR ENERS - A&
EEEESRANREBESHFHOR
[ WHEBIRNEE - BITHED
HESRBORAEGM FOLERE
UNCH

ERMIA
a ERIEEH

2021 2020
ZEZ-F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETRT ARET
Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost B HR AR 202,394 293,400
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost SR AR 80,594 76818
Lease liabilities HEafE 1,706 2,067
82,300 78,385
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

&

28.

178

FoEC—F =t —HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other
payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risks (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk related primarily to certain
bank balances that are denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated

monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

28. €WIE (&)

b.

BERREEBERBER
$gﬁmiﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
FEW IR ~ & K& H b B WK
ﬁ~ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%*ﬁ%%
fRIE - HAEAFIE - RITHE
REMHEEE - ZZFERIAD
BNk
TRIAFHENRRBETSE
’ﬂf%ﬂ s AR ER)
RREE e RR o flRiE
EZ%%E%%&E@E&ﬂ%%&E@TTSZ o B
EERRERZEFRR - ARR
KB B8 ROt SREUE 2 e

g aray
HZE

ax=

R T
gl
AEEEBTRENETRET

ﬁ@% = FRITHE B R INE

B o 7R 5 B3R B N AR A SN
ﬂ)':ljﬂlﬁﬁ o SR - B IR B A AN
P B X 1 & R A B KON L
B (TN E)

AEEREREHRAINEFE
MEREENREEDT -

As at 3| December

W+=A=+-H
2021 2020
B —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥BTRT ARETR

Monetary assets E¥EE

HKS BT 11,908 10,180
US$ % 6 40
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group exposes foreign currency risk on fluctuation of HK$ and US$
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The following table
details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2020: 5%) increase and decrease in
RMB against HK$ or US$ by 5% (2020: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used which
represents the management's assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% (2020: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year
where RMB weakened 5% (2020: 5%) against HK$ or US$. For a 5% (2020:
5%) strengthening of RMB against HK$ or US$, there would be an equal and

opposite impact in the profit or loss.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F- 41 H=1—HIFE

28. €WIE (&)

b.

BHRREEERRBE (&)
%R ()

E¥mk (&)

FRERE AT
HE_Z2-—GFR_ZFT_FF
TZA=T—HLEFE K&
B H B8 T e R TT R B AN L
o TRAMASEHAREH,
BTHETHBEREES (ZF
ZTF 5%) MBURE - TR
5% (ZF_TF : 5%) BEEE
BEELHIMNEERNAIREAIRE
BRI - RESMERREN
SNEHERMARERERER X
RERPINEEXMS% (ZTZ
TE 5%) BBARHME - T
I ES B A R H BTl
TLRES% (ZF=FF : 5%) K
FABRBRMEZM - FEARK

AABTHETHES(ZE_F
F5%)ME - BEEREER
ERERTE

As at 3| December

BWt+t=A=+-H
2021 2020
B —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TT ARBTT
HK$ BT 497 425
US$ X = 2

& Less than RMBI,000

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the years.

& DRAREE,0007T
EEERE  BRESTTER
FAEINERR - B AT RER
AR RE AR o
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to lease
liabilities and fixed-rate bank borrowings (2020: lease liabilities and fixed-
rate bank borrowings). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk which arises from cash and cash equivalents (2020: cash and cash

equivalents) which carry interests at prevailing market rates.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its
exposure associated with transactions relating to cash flows interest rate risk.
However, the management of Group monitors interest rate exposure and

will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The interest rate risk to the Group are insignificant. Accordingly, no

sensitivity analysis is presented for the interest risk impact.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of these assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

Trade receivables

The management of the Group determines credit limits based on the credit
quality. Credit limits are reviewed annually over these balances. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade
receivables individually and collectively with appropriate groupings, which
is based on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the nature
of debtors and internal credit ratings. Impairment (net) of RMB61,000 is
reversed for the year ended 3| December 2021 (2020: Impairment (net) of
RMB34,000 was recognised). Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider

that the Group's credit risk of trade receivables is significantly reduced.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

28. €WIE (&)

b.

MREREEBEREE (&)
EEmE R BETE

WEF TR |EHRRBEEITHR
FWRME  WAKEBHECHE
REMEEMARAZNEAGEE
R REREGE BB TZ
MEERREE °

EZRWHE

AEEEEEQREBEEEXRHE
EEREE - AKESFHSE
REEHNER ERFERS
g AEBCHIEAMEERF
RRERIURER R EAME

%o WA AEEREREEY
BHELERE R RREME

EEBRENHRE 5 EKFIERA
BHEBERNETEBRREERERN
i WHER2EERANMEE
RAEETROEREERR
BEEL - #EZ-T-—F+=
A=+—BILFEHEBRE(OF
B)ARKESI,000T(Z2=F
F:ERRRE(FE) ARK
3400070) ° EEHRBEMFBER
AMFETX o st s - AAA
EERANEEE HEKFIEN
EERBRAERD o
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 28. £WMITA (&)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HEBRKREZREEERBE (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EEEERBEFE (&)
Deposits and other receivables and bank balances B2 REMEN B R TAEER
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are REFHAEAEESEETRHR
banks with high credit ratings and stated-owned banks with good reputation. TEEERHBENRELRT
WrnBEeNEERRAR
For deposits and other receivables, the Group performs an ongoing MIEES NEMERFGIBERES @ K
individual credit evaluation of their counterparties’ financial conditions and EREEREBFHANTBRR
historical settlement records. The directors of the Company believe that NMIE S SR E R ETEE T
there are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial fFo RABEERE  BYILHE
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on |2m ECL and the RUARZERBNEERR I &
management is of the opinion that the outstanding debts are recoverable. BERINBAEFERE 12(EBE
HEEBETRAERE ME
BERAREEER THE -
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following REENANIPEZERMZELT G
categories: BREATER
Internal credit ~ Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
NEEE L B o RN Hit e MEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL - [2-month ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
BB HFARENERREAYEETRSNTE GEPRBCERRE - REL NEAERBEEERE
EERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — [2-month ECL
usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
RERE EHEALERRETERERIEE RERRHEESE - REE NEAESRCEER
FERE
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 28. SRIT A (#)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HEBRKREZREEERBE (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EEREREETE ()
Deposits and other receivables and bank balances (continued) B J B ENSTE R iR7T A2 A
(&)
Intemnal credit ~ Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
AEE A )L 6 HibemEE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL —
risk since initial recognition through information not credit-impaired not credit-impaired

developed internally or external resources

5k BBRNIREASERABEERRENE FENRMEEEHE - A8L: FENRNEEEE - K84
BARERE 0 EERE EERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
Bx AEBEBNEBAECRLERRNE FEHRBCERE ¥ FEPRNGERRE -CB4E
EERE FERE
White-off There is evidence indicating that the debtorisin ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

severe financial difficutty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

i35 FRBEBRNMEBARABRENMBRELAS HHEHLRE MEREER
ENRARBRAREERETR
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

28.

184

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
b.

28. €WIE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. BREAREEEERNE (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EEREREETE ()
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial TREAMAEFBEETEEEE
assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: BRGNS EENEZER
2021 2020
External Internal Gross Gross
credit credit  |12-month or carrying carrying
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL amount amount
SR RE  12EAREFEY —B--F —T-%F
Mz FEIR  FETR ARGEES BEREE AFEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETE
Financial assets at
amortised costs —
REERANEREE
Bank balances 20 Baa — AAA N/A  12-month ECL 32,520 103,557
RITHEER NER  REAEHEEEE
Deposits and other receivables 19 N/A Low risk  [2-month ECL 1,360 845
me MEMEKIR TER ERE REAEREEEER
Trade receivables 18 N/A (Note)  Lifetime ECL 142,946 131,685
B 5 W KIE TiEH (BR=E) (individually assessed)
FENEHEEER
CEGIREED)
Lifetime ECL 25,653 57437
(collectively assessed)
FEREBEEES
(SERBHA)
168,599 189,122
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Note: For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the
ECL on these items on a collective basis, grouped by nature of debtors and

debtors’ internal credit rating.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal
credit rating for its debtors on trade receivables. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed on a collective basis as at 31 December 2021 within lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired). Trade receivables with significant outstanding balances
with gross carrying amount of RMB 142,946,000 (2020: RMB31,685,000) as

at 31 December 2021 were assessed individually.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F- 41 H=1—HIFE

28. €WIE (&)

MEEREEBEREE (&)

EE /R ES ()

FiZ - B SERFENS - A5E
BEREEEYBRE LS
IR A ETESTE
HEEBENEBERE - BT
EEANKEBESHIDEE
EERBENEKEZRIN - A&
l?%%%ﬁ(&1ﬁAm&
B REBANAE SR
@JEE&?EEW%%F%
&1

WE$E@FEHMEEW—%

7 AEEREBEBARAE
FRERFEANBEETR - TK
RUEBARGFENBEHEES
B(RBEEGERE)AERE
SREKRFE(R_T_—F+=
A=+—BER&EBTIH) FER
BHER  -NZT-—F+=R
=t+—H ERFEERNHRK
EEASBELEEEAARE
1429460007 (ZE=FF : AR
#131,685,0007T) BV'E 5 FEU IR
EATEBIFTEE o
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

28.

186

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

28. €WIE (&)

b.

FREREEEEREK (&)
EEmE R B AT ()

2021 2020

—2--F “EITF
Gross carrying Gross carrying
amount amount
Average of trade Average of trade
Loss rate receivables Loss rate receivables
B 5 RYHE B B ENGR
FHBEE BEREE FHERX ARRRE(E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Low risk 0.31% 25,653 0.25% 57,437

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default

rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-

looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided RMB80,000 (2020:
RMB143,000) impairment allowance for trade receivables which are assessed
on a collective basis. Impairment allowance of RMB5,000 (2020: RMB3,000)

were made on debtors with significant balances debtors.

NNK Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F- 41 H=1—HIFE

28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 28. €RIE (#)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b.
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been

recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

P ER EE A ERHE ()
ERERRHEF ()
TEREFEEBITERESE
KRB FEREREEE
BED -

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-

impaired)

FEARY

FEER

(R#E

FERME)

RMB’000

ARBTR

As at | January 2020 RZEZZTF—H—H 112
Impairment losses reversed on financial instruments RZZ_TF— A —BERN

recognised as at | January 2020 R TAREBERD (112)

New financial assets originated HEENEREE 146

As at 31 December 2020 Q:%?:;ﬁi—k*ﬁ]:—l——a 146
Impairment losses reversed on financial instruments A\ —F—A—B®RAN

recognised as at | January 202 | R TAREBERE (146)

New financial assets originated HEENEREE 85

As at 3| December 202 RZFZ—F+-HA=1—H 85

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables
are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade

receivables that have been written off is subject to enforcement activities.

BERBREBARNRENB
R 8 I 4 2 X U ) m] ¢ (91 a0 R
BABBE BN D EARERFH
S 5 FE W IB 8 B F DA £ R
(ABREBEERE)) - AEEM
HE SRR - EWHENE S

NIRRT TR I TEE
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

28.

188

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

28. £RITH (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. BREREEEERBE (&)
Liquidity risk REELEE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains RNEBRESESRKRE  ~NEF
a level of cash and cash equivalents as well as undrawn banking facilities ERWARETIERR AT AR
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations AEBMHEELBKEESRE)
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management HERNTENRE S RESEE
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings to ensure compliance with loan PIA R R IR BRI TR E KT - &
covenants. BEERRITEROEAERLA
FEfRE T E L
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturities Tty RFAEBSRHEEDN
for its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the FleaE QB HAHAPE - 32 %5k 2
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the ENemaERhBEaERNARLE
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes BESRERENANER I HE
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are SNFHRFEREHRR - JRE
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the EANBERAESHIEEREE « MH
end of the reporting period. ERAZENE - RERESED
B W& PRAMESZL o
Weighted Repayable
average on demand | year Total
effective or within 3 months to  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to | year 5 years cash flows amount
RREX
WYY HH3EAR AEH
BRAI= 8 ERZIF IFE5F REREAE g
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARMTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARET:R
Asat3] December 2021  RZZ=—F
TZA=t-H
Trade payables B OENFE = 20,176 = = 21,176 2,176
Other payables Bt ERTFIE = 9418 = = 9418 9418
Bank borrowings RITEH 550 - 52,735 - 52,735 50,000
Lease liabiities HEARE 520 397 1,164 206 1,767 1,706
30991 53,899 206 85,09 82,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

28. €WIE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) HREREEEEREE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) mHELEE (&)
Weighted Repayable
average on demand I year Total
effective or within 3 months to  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to | year 5 years cash flows amount
mERS  BRRRE RS
BEAE MEARER EAZIF IFESE RERELR R (E
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000
ARBETT  ARETR AR®TR ARMTT ARETR
Asat3] December 200 WRZZ-TF
TZA=t-H
Trade payables B OENFE — 18474 = = 18474 18474
Other payables BRI = 8,344 = = 8,344 8,344
Bank borrowings RITER 520 - 50848 - 50848 50000
Lease liabiities HEARE 590 Bl 857 1,053 2191 2067
27099 51705 1,053 79857 78885
Fair value of financial instruments SMIANATE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing model based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair value.

REERATENSREENRS
BREENLATEREMRRARESR

ENMERLAREERUEE -
ARBEFRR - AEHAAT

REaMBEREANEREERS
BEENREEREAHERS -
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BHARS
(@) Same as disclosed in note 19, the Group entered into the following (@ WHEFIIFHE  AEBEEBE
transactions with the related party: FHILTHIRS :
2021 2020
—¥--F C—ZT-ETHF
Name of related party Name of transaction RMB’000 RMB'000
)yt REEB ARBTRE ARETRT
Yinsheng Communication Company Limited Purchase of mobile top-up credits 117,532 -
REBEERAR] BEFHEERESR

Note: Yinsheng Communication Company Limited is controlled by Mr. Lin
Zhongcheng, the sibling of Ms. Lam Ching Wan, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, it becomes a connected person of the Company under
the listing rule from 26 October 2021. The transaction disclosed represent
purchase of mobile top-up credits by the Group from 26 October 2021 to 3|
December 2021.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel which represents the
directors of the Company and key executives of the Group during the year

were as follows:

190

(b)

M :REBEEBRLAALIN
Zhongchengft £ (B =&+
BLER) PRl - MG RL
TRARAMEEZRR - K=
T —F+A=F+AREL
MHRAKBSEARANBEEA
T - IRBENRSEASER
“E--FtA-tRAEC
T-_—F+-RA=1+—HEE
FHREBEREDH -

TEEBAENME

FR - XEEBEAB (BARA
EERASEXETRAR)N
MemT :

2021 2020

—B--§ —Z-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Salaries and other short term benefits & REAREHER 5,121 5,670
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R EIHR 300 143
5421 5813

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(¢)  Guarantee
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's unsecured bank borrowings facilities
of RMB50,000,000 were guaranteed by the Company, Daily Charge
SZ, Yinsheng Communication Company Limited, Mr. Huang Junmou, a

substantial shareholder of the Company, and Mr. Lin Zhongcheng.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's unsecured bank borrowings facilities
of RMB50,000,000 were guaranteed by the Company, Daily Charge SZ, Mr.
Huang Junmou and Mr. Yang Hua who were substantial shareholders of the

Company,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 14 December 2015, the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
pursuant to a resolution passed by its then shareholders on |4 December 2015, for
the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible employees, non-

executive directors of the Company and other selected participants.

The principal terms of which are summarised in the section headed “Statutory and
General Information — F. Share Option Scheme™ in Appendix IV to the Company's
prospectus in respect of the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange dated 24 December 2015. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December

2020, no share option was granted.

29.

30.

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F- 41 H=1—HIFE

BB AIRS
(o ¥R

RZZE-_—F+ZA=+—8"
AEENEERRITERREA
E%wmwmmmﬁfﬂ\%i
R REBEERAR =
ESe (K/L\ETEKHXi) KLin
Zhongcheng ft A HE IR ©

RN_ZE-_TF+_A=+—8"
AEENEERRITERREA
FE#650,0000007TCHARR] + KK
TR BEFLEERGELRE
(BARRAREBRER) ER -

fElR S8

—hF+ZA+WA - REAR
AERRRR -_T-hF+_-A+tHA
BBRRESR - ADRIBGRIERAN—R
BhEFE  T2ENARALRAAE
BEE  FRTEShEMETL2EE
RALRE S R -

R M) E 2T AR A D B 5t
HROEHRA EmmAIEaASHA=

—RAE+ZAZ+MAHBRERM
B0 [EE R—MEM —FERET 2]
—fi o RZTZ—F+=-A=1+—H8BK
ZECTET A=+ -HUEREE
ARFE
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 31

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing

activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

METHEENEEHR

TRFLAKERELDELNEEE
g BRASNIFREEE - REEY
ELNBEENAREGARERE
ARERESIARKASRESLHED
BRRELDRERENRE -

Bank Lease

borrowings liabilities

BITRER HEAE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR

At | January 2020 R-_ZT-_TF—H—H 20,000 3,061
Financing cash flows HERERE 28,923 (1,287)
New leases entered EEEEES — 146
Interest expenses FERX 1,077 147
At 31 December 2020 R-F-_FF+t-_H=1—H 50,000 2,067
Financing cash flows HERERE (2,333) (1518)
New leases entered EEEEED — 1,033
Interest expenses FEFAX 2,333 124
At 31 December 202 RZZE_—F+-H=1—H 50,000 1,706

192 NNK Group Limited Annual Report 202



32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

32. AP RBHEARRRFEEER

2021 2020
—B--F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTR AR®TT

Non-current asset FREEE

Investments in subsidiaries e L) NG] 1,040 2,845

Current assets REEE

Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 7,031 9773

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURFT B A RIFA 304 122
7,335 9,895

Current liabilities nEaE

Other payables Hith e 50IE 2,128 357

Net current assets MENEEFE 5,207 9,538

Net assets EEFE 6,247 12,383

Capital and reserves EX K &R

Share capital R 27,221 27,221

Reserves 4] (20,974) (14,838)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARAEE NG ERE 6,247 12,383
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A M WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-—F1-A=F—HIFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Movement in the Company’s reserves

32. ADRMBRAK R (A

AAARERED

Share  Accumulated

premium losses Total

a8 RitER e

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTRT AR®BTR AR¥TR
At | January 2020 R-ZE-TF—F—H 38037 (45871) (7,834)
Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year FAEE K E M2 HEH Y — (7,004) (7,004)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZTF+-A=+—H 38,037 (52,875) (14,838)
Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year FAE1E KM EEH Y — (6,136) (6,136)
At 3| December 2021 RZE-—F+=-A=+—H 38,037 (59,011) (20,974)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33.

Particulars of the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Place of incorporation/

e M AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE - E 1 A=1—HIFE

=N =D
ARRIR-_E-—FR_T_TF+=
A=+—H®O2EHBRRFENT

Name of subsidiary establishment Principal activities

) R MR, R EE TEXEB

Phone Charge Technology Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding

Phone Charge Technology Limited HERLHS REER

NN Payment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding

NN Payment Limited REBREIHS REER

Daily Charge HK Company Limited Hong Kong Investment holding

Daily Charge HK Company Limited BB REZR

FEINBERAT Hong Kong Dormant

FENBRAT BB EVEE)

Daily Charge SZ (Note (i) The PRC Investment holding

ARFEARIN (HIFEG)) FE REZER

Shenzhen NNK (Note (i) The PRC Mobile top-up services

“Wii*(%i@) R FHAETERS

RIATE = BRERHE AR 2 7 (Note (i) The PRC Technical development

meiﬁ RBEREAR AR (FEEG)) I SR

AR ORI BRR A BB R A (Note (7)) The PRC Technical development

ZHARHR (RN BRARER LA (HEEG) I BB

Notes: BT -

(i) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. (i) ZHB RN BEMINTEE B

#o

(i) The equity interests of the subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company through iy ZEMBEBRRARBBIUEZNRERL
the VIE Arrangement and the subsidiaries are wholly domestic owned enterprises AR AEERE - AZENBR
established in the PRC. AIRETBERIIMAEBELE -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the each

reporting period or at any time during the year.

REFEPRIAFEEMAR R - 8
MEARERETMETEINGERE

o

I
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LFEHMBRE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 3| December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

FRGeEEREtEEKER

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZBC-F 2T —TNF T\ ZT—+F
RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMBO000  RMBO00O  RMBO00O
ARBTR AR®TT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
Revenue A 90,622 81,742 49,827 60,280 8332
Cost of revenue WA A (14,783) (18228) (20,129) (35,759) (38,520)
Gross profit E7 75,551 63,001 29,645 24318 43,364
Profit (loss) before tax BRiiADE A (&) 32,037 30219 673 (21,610) (19,729)
Income tax (expense) credit et (%) BE (5,559) (6) @) (4224) 691
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to ~ ANA B A AREIS
owners of the Company FREN (EE) 26,478 30213 665 (25,834) (19,038)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive &7 (E518) k2 EU &
income (expense) (Fis) % 26,478 30213 665 (25,834) (19,038)
Eamings (loss) per share — basic FREREM (BE)
(RMB cents) (AR%5) 6.38 728 0.16 (623) (459)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HRGEEERAEE
As at 3| December
R+=A=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZBC-F ZT2TF —T-NF T\ ZT—+LF
RMB000  RMBO00 ~ RMBO000 ~ RMB000O  RMBO00O
ARBTR AR®TT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Total assets mEE 379,842 352,970 280,052 321,155 419,732
Total liabilities maR 144,158 143,764 101,059 142,827 21548
Total equity s 235,684 209,206 178993 178328 204,251
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